Hirszfeld Institute of Immunology and Experimental Therapy Polish Academy of Sciences Rudolfa Weigla 12, 53-114 Wrocław

RESEARCH REPORT 2018

Contents	Page
1. Laboratory of Experimental Anticancer Therapy Head: Professor Joanna Wietrzyk, Ph.D.	3
 Laboratory of Tumor Molecular Immunobiology Head: Professor Wojciech Kałas, Ph.D. 	4
3. Laboratory of Biomedical Chemistry Head: Professor Janusz Boratyński, Ph.D., Eng.	5
4. Laboratory of Clinical Immunogenetics and Pharmacogenetics Head: Professor Katarzyna Bogunia-Kubik, Ph.D.	6
5. Laboratory of Immunogenetics and Tissue Immunology Head: Professor Piotr Kuśnierczyk, Ph.D	7
6. Laboratory of Clinical Immunology Head: Professor Andrzej Lange, M.D.	8
7. Laboratory of Bacteriophages Head: Professor Andrzej Górski, M.D.	9
8. Laboratory of Biology of Stem and Neoplastic Cells Head: Aleksandra Klimczak, Ph.D., D.Sc.	11
9. Department of Anthropology Head: Professor Sławomir Kozieł, Ph.D.	12
10. Laboratory of Molecular Biology of Microorganisms Head: Professor Anna Pawlik, Ph.D.	13
11. Laboratory of Signaling Proteins Acting Head: Professor Jakub Siednienko, Ph.D.	14
12. Laboratory of Molecular and Cellular Immunology Head: Professor Małgorzata Cebrat, Ph.D.	14
13. Laboratory of Tumor Immunology Head: Professor Arkadiusz Miążek, Ph.D.	16
14. Laboratory of Immunobiology Head: Professor Michał Zimecki, Ph.D	16

15. Laboratory of Immunopathology Head: Professor Irena Frydecka, M.D., Ph.D.	18
16. Laboratory of Reproductive Immunology Head: Professor Anna Chełmońska-Soyta, Ph.D, V.D.	19
17. Laboratory of Medical Microbiology Head: Professor Andrzej Gamian, Ph.D	20
18. Laboratory of Virology Head: Professor Egbert Piasecki, Ph.D.	20
19. Laboratory of Glyconjugates Head: Professor Marcin Czerwiński, Ph.D.	21
20. Laboratory of Microbial Immunochemistry and Vaccines Head: Professor Jolanta Łukasiewicz, Ph.D.	22

DEPARTMENT OF EXPERIMENTAL ONCOLOGY Head: Professor Leon Strządała, Ph.D.

Laboratory of Experimental Anticancer Therapy Head: Professor Joanna Wietrzyk, Ph.D.

Studies on the mechanisms of tumor progression, metastasis and on the effects of experimental antitumor therapy

Participation of 1.25D3-MARRS in the sensitivity of human colon cancer cells to vitamin D3

Calcitriol (an active metabolite of vitamin D3) may have activity that is not related to the classic vitamin D receptor. Recently, a novel receptor with high affinity to calcitriol, called 1,25D3-MARRS (1,25D3 - membrane associated rapid response to steroids) was identified. This protein belongs to the family of disulfide isomerases (PDI) and is called interchangeably ERp57/PDIA3/GRP58/1,25D3-MARRS. The aim of our research is to analyze the role of this receptor in the sensitivity of colon cancer cells to vitamin D compounds (VDCs): calcitriol and tacalcitol. Neomycin, known as 1,25D3-MARRS inhibitor was used simultaneously with VDCs, and the changes in the cellular location and expression of 1,25D3-MARRS and in the susceptibility to inhibiting the proliferation of human LoVo and HT-29 colon cancer cells were evaluated. LoVo cells are insensitive to inhibition of proliferation by VDCs and the combined use of neomycin has increased their sensitivity. The observed effect was associated with an increase in the amount of mRNA and the 1,25D3-MARRS protein in these cells. On the other hand. in the case of HT-29, originally sensitive to VDCs, a decrease in sensitivity to VDCs was observed after combined use with neomycin. The levels of 1,25D3-MARRS mRNA and protein were also reduced in the combined use of neomycin with VDCs. VDCs caused the accumulation of the receptor in the endoplasmic reticulum around the cell nucleus. The addition of neomycin intensified this process, especially in HT-29 cells.

Research on the use of bisphosphonates in anticancer therapy

Previous studies have shown that the new bisphosphonates show a special (often selective) antiproliferative activity against J774E and RAW264.7 macrophages. Subsequently, compounds 12399C and 12592A were shown to significantly inhibit the differentiation of RAW264.7 macrophages to osteoclasts. Moreover, it has been shown that the combined use of compound 12399C and doxorubicin or 5-fluorouracil, especially if the cells are pretreated with a cytostatic and then treated with a bisphosphonate, gives a synergistic effect. A similar effect was observed for bisphosphonate 12592A combined with 5-fluorouracil. In turn, the combined use of compound 12592A and doxorubicin produced an antagonistic effect. The obtained results indicate a different mechanism of action of the two studied aminomethylidene bisphosphonates, despite being in the same group of N-bisphosphonates.

Optimization of transduction conditions and characteristics of mouse myeloid dendritic cells (BM-DC) and JAWS II genetically modified for the production of IL-2 and/or IL-15 and stimulated with tumor antigens

The aim of the task was to obtain cell vaccines based on genetically modified dendritic cells for the production of proinflammatory and regulatory cytokines. In the reported period,

the focus was on determining the variant of dendritic cell modification with overexpression of interleukin 15 (BM-DC/IL-15) or the IL-15 complex with its receptor (BM-DC/IL-15R). The degree of efficiency of gene insertion was assessed in relation to IL-2 production by BM-DC/IL-2 transductants. Transduction was carried out using III generation lentiviral vectors containing the IL-15, IL-15/IL-15R and IL-2 gene sequence. The use of a functional test allowed us to estimate the effect of transduction on the ability of BM-DC to stimulate non-sensitized splenocytes to produce proinflammatory cytokines. The primary activation of spleen cells in mixed cell culture was associated with slight changes in their surface phenotype (a slight increase in the presence of BM-DC/IL-2+ and BM-DC/IL-15R+). The use of BM-DC/IL-15R+ resulted in a significant stimulation of splenocytes for the production of IFN- γ , and BM-DC/IL-2+ - for the production of IL-2. The calculated IFN- γ /IL-10 ratio indicated that only DC/IL-15R+ cells are capable of targeting Th1-type responses.

Laboratory of Tumor Molecular Immunobiology Head: Professor Wojciech Kałas, Ph.D.

Currently, 5-fluorouracil, irinotecan (also known as CPT-11) and oxaliplatin constitute the backbone of chemotherapy for CRC. Because the currently approved therapies fail in a substantial number of CRC patients, new efficient drug combinations are constantly being sought. Emerging data indicate that 5-azanucleosides are able to sensitize cancer cells to the standard chemotherapeutic agents and contribute to overcoming intrinsic or acquired chemoresistance.

Previously, we have demonstrated that pretreatment with DNA demethylating agents, 5-aza-2'-deoxycytidine or 5-azacytidine, sensitizes CRC cells to topoisomerase inhibitors (irinotecan, etoposide, doxorubicin, mitoxantrone), reducing cell viability and clonogenicity and increasing apoptosis more effectively than individual compounds at the same or even higher concentrations. The 5-azanucleosides exerted long-lasting effects on phosphoinositide 3-kinase (PI3-kinase)/Akt signaling pathway.

In the current studies, we focused on the nature of long-term actions of 5-azanucleosides on colon cancer cell lines resulting in its sensitization. We found that the treatment with deoxycytidine, but 5-azacytidine leads to long-term inhibition of proliferation. The effect can be observed even 12 days after a single treatment of DLD-1, HT-29, RKO cell lines with a single dose of deoxycytidine. This was reflected in the distribution of cells in the cell cycle phases, and a significant decrease of cells in S phase was observed. Interestingly, deoxycytidine does not affect the growth of such FHs74Int intestine normal cells. Additionally, the proliferation inhibition was accompanied by profound changes in morphology. Cells treated with azadeoxycytidine were bigger, had a bigger nucleus and had a number of vacuoles. Again, the 5-azacytidine does not have such an effect on cellular morphology.

In order to resolve the molecular background of the proliferation inhibition, the expression of six cell cycle regulators were studied: the CDKN1A gene, coding p21, inhibitor of CDK1 and CDK2 kinases, CDKN2A gene, coding p16, inhibitor of CDK4 and CDK6 kinases, CCND1 gene, coding cyclin D1, the CDK4 and CDK6 kinases activator, MDM2 gene, coding Mdm2, p53 inhibitor, MYC gene coding Myc, cell cycle related transcription factor, and GLB1 gene coding beta-galactosisdase, which is the marker of cellular senescence. This last gene was selected, as an increase of cell body and vacuolisation often accompany the cellular senescence. We found that the expression of GLB1 gene was not affected by 5-azacytidine or azadeoxycytidine.

On the other hand, the increase in the expression of CDKN1A (p21), CDKN2A (p16), negative cell cycle regulators genes were observed. The increase of p21 was confirmed on the protein level with the Western Blotting experiment. Additionally, in some cases the inhibition of MYC gene expression was observed. The changes found are consistent with the observed inhibition of proliferation. It is still an open question whether the observed phenomena have an epigenetic nature or are the result of the cell being poisoned with azadeoxycytidine.

Laboratory of Biomedical Chemistry Head: Professor Janusz Boratyński, Ph.D., Eng.

The use of icosahedral boron clusters as modifying entities for biologically active molecules

In our studies, we have attached anionic boron clusters (dodecaborate [B12H12]2– and metallacarborane cobalt bis(1,2-dicarbollide) [COSAN]–) to therapeutic peptide thymosin $\beta4$ (T $\beta4$) through an ether linker. After trypsin digestion and MS/MS analysis of the conjugates, we observed that boron clusters were attached to carboxylic groups of the peptide via ester bond. Those ester bonds are prone to hydrolysis and have various stabilities depending on modified amino acid residue. The conjugates with modified Glu residues were more stable with half-lives of 372 to 1329 h and the conjugates with modified Asp residues were less stable with half-lives of 3 to 24 h. We determined the affinity of the conjugates to human serum albumin (HSA) using measurements of quenching of HSA fluorescence and surface plasmon resonance (SPR) technique. As opposed to unmodified T $\beta4$ and T $\beta4$ -[B12H12]2– conjugates, T $\beta4$ -[COSAN]– conjugates have high affinity to HSA, similar to low molecular weight compounds like warfarin and ibuprofen. Furthermore, T $\beta4$ -[COSAN]– conjugates showed no toxicity and superior activity in comparison to unmodified T $\beta4$ in *in vitro* studies.

As a result, we have obtained analogs of T β 4 with improved biological activity and ability to bind HSA, which can be used to prolong the half-life of T β 4. Those results showed the potential of boron clusters to modify therapeutic peptides.



Figure 1. Synthesis of Thymosin β 4 - boron cluster conjugates

T4-Kontr.



Bacteriophages

Biological preparations, such as bacteriophages, are beginning to play an increasingly important role in human and animal therapy. They have the potential to be used in the treatment of bacterial infections as a diagnostic

tool, in food processing technology or for the reduction of biofilms in the food and pharmaceutical industries. Adequate stabilization not only ensures the preservation of antimicrobial activity at a constant level, but also affects the reproducibility of the obtained preparations. Despite the attempts to create new formulations, there is a serious problem with maintaining the lytic activity of bacterial viruses during long storage. Bacteriophages stored in the bacterial lysate maintain their biological activity relatively well; however, due to the presence of bacterial components, these preparations do not meet the standards set for medicine. In our laboratory we work on developing the conditions necessary for stabilizing and encapsulating purified preparations of lytic bacteriophages. The proposed research is in line with the global trend of searching for nanoparticles with antibacterial activity.

DEPARTMENT OF CLINICAL IMMUNOLOGY

Laboratory of Clinical Immunogenetics and Pharmacogenetics Head: Professor Katarzyna Bogunia-Kubik, Ph.D.

Polymorphism and expression of genes encoding proteins associated with thalidomide metabolism in patients with multiple myeloma

Multiple myeloma (MM) is a haematologic malignancy characterized by the presence of atypical plasma cells. Basigin (BSG, CD147) controls lactate export through the monocarboxylic acid transporter 1 (MCT1, SLC16A1) and supports MM survival and proliferation. Additionally, BSG is implicated in the response to treatment with immunomodulatory drugs (thalidomide and its derivatives). In 2018 we investigated the role of single nucleotide polymorphisms (SNPs) in the genes coding for BSG and SLC16A1 in MM. Following an in silico analysis, eight SNPs (four in BSG and four in SLC16A1) predicted to have a functional effect were selected and analysed in 135 MM patients and 135 healthy individuals.

Alleles rs4919859 C, rs8637 G, and haplotype CG were associated with worse progression-free survival (p=0.006, p=0.017, p=0.002, respectively), while rs7556664A, rs7169 T and rs1049434 A (all in LD, r2>0.98) were associated with better overall survival (p=0.021). Similar relationships were observed in thalidomide-treated patients. Moreover, rs4919859 C, rs8637G, rs8259 A and the CG haplotype were more common in patients in stages II-III of the International Staging System (p<0.05), while rs8259 A correlated with higher levels of beta-2-microglobulin and creatinine (p<0.05).

Taken together, our results show that BSG and SLC16A1 variants affect survival and may play an important role in MM.

Evaluation of polymorphisms of selected genes in non-small cell lung cancer and their relationship with the course of the disease

Lung cancer is the leading cause of cancer deaths, both in Poland and all over the world. Non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) represents the vast majority of lung cancer cases. Although cigarette smoking is the prevalent risk factor for lung cancer, genetic factors are presumed to account in part for this interindividual variation in lung cancer susceptibility. Nevertheless, results have been conflicting. There is no data available regarding the Polish population.

We, therefore, performed a case-control study to investigate the association of 7 selected SNPs, three in excision repair cross-complimentary group 1 (ERCC1 rs11615, rs3212986,

rs2298881), two in nuclear factor κ B (NF κ B2 rs7897947, rs12769316), one in bone morphogenetic protein 4 (BMP4 rs1957860), complement receptor 1 (CR1 rs7525160) and ins/del polymorphism within the gene coding for family hypoxia inducible factor 2 (EGLN2 rs10680577) in NSCLC patients and healthy individuals of Polish origin. The LightSNiP assays were used for genotyping of 84 patients for rs11615, rs3212986, rs1957860, rs7525160, 146 patients for rs7897947, rs12769316, rs10680577, rs2298881 and 234 healthy individuals for all 8 SNPs. In addition, the levels of 10 cytokines were analysed using Luminex technology.

Two ERCC1 genotypes were found to be associated with predisposition to NSCLC independently of the patients' sex: the rs11615 TT genotype (p=0.021) and the rs3212986 GG homozygosity (p=0.021). In addition, NF κ B2 rs12769316 GG homozygosity (p=0.035) increased the risk of NSCLC in males. There is no linkage disequilibrium between these loci. No significant differences were found for the extant five polymorphisms. Based on the ROC analysis, IL-12 serum level appeared to have the most significant predictive value for NSCLC development.

The results indicate that the ERCC1 polymorphisms may affect NSCLC risk and NF κ B2 can be markers of the disease in male population while IL-12 serum level seems to have higher predictive value.

Laboratory of Immunogenetics and Tissue Immunology Head: Professor Piotr Kuśnierczyk, Ph.D.

Immunogenetics of human diseases

We are presently carrying out 3 projects funded by the National Centre of Science, one from our Institute, and 3 projects (KNOW) were completed in 2018. The most important results are as follows:

a) Associations of single nucleotide polymorphisms (SNPs) in ERAP1 and ERAP2 genes with susceptibility to ankylosing spondylitis (AS) in Polish patients (grant from the Hirszfeld Institute of Immunology and Experimental Therapy)

The aim of this work was to examine whether *ERAP1* (rs2287987, rs30187, rs27044) and *ERAP2* (rs2248374) SNPs and their haplotypes may have a predictive value for estimating the risk of AS. All tested *ERAP1* SNPs were associated with AS risk. The strongest association with AS was observed for rs30187. The minor T allele and homozygous TT genotype of this SNP significantly increased disease risk (OR = 1.56, 95%CI = 1.22 - 1.99, p = 0.0004 and OR = 2.52, 95%CI = 1.50 - 4.25, p = 0.001, respectively). In the case of rs2287987, minor C allele exerted a protective effect (OR = 0.64, 95%CI = 0.46 - 0.88, p = 0.008). In contrast to *ERAP1*, we observed no effect of rs2248374 in *ERAP2* on the disease. We also carried out *ERAP1-ERAP2* haplotype analysis to demonstrate a possible association of both genes with AS. Results showed that the haplotype H4, containing *ERAP1* SNPs associated with high enzymatic activity, together with the presence of ERAP2 expression, increased the risk of AS (OR = 1.97, 95% CI = 1.21 - 3.21, pcorr = 0.048). By contrast, the haplotype H5 coding for low activity of ERAP1 and the lack of ERAP2 expression was strongly protective (OR = 0.41, 95% CI = 0.23-0.72, pcorr = 0.008). Results were accepted for publication in *Human Immunology*.

b) Association of ERAP1 SNP Ile276Met is associated with atopic dermatitis and its effect on the generation of an HLA-C associated antigenic epitope in vitro (grant from KNOW)

We found that an association of HLA-C*05:01 allele with AD. KIR-HLA-C interactions are affected by peptides presented by HLA-C. The generation of these peptides is strongly influenced by endoplasmic reticulum aminopeptidases 1 and 2 (ERAP1 and ERAP2). Expression and activity of ERAP molecules depend on the polymorphisms of their genes. Only one SNP in the *ERAP1* gene, rs26618T>C, causing the amino acid change Ile276Met, was associated with AD. We collaborated with the National Centre for Scientific Research Demokritos, Agia Paraskevi, Athens, Greece, who produced recombinant variants differing only at position 276 (Ile or Met) and tested their aminopeptidase activity against a Nterminally extended precursor LIVDRPVTLV of the HLA-C*05:01 epitope IVDRPVTLV. Both ERAP1 variants were able to efficiently generate the epitope, but the common 276Ile allotype was able to do this about 50% faster. Furthermore, both variants were quite inefficient in the further degradation of the mature epitope. Finally, we found that the effect of 276Met on susceptibility to AD was seen only in *KIR2DS1*-negative individuals, not protected by this KIR. The manuscript describing these results has been accepted for publication in the *Journal of the European Academy of Dermatology and Venereology*.

c) The role of ERAP, KIR and HLA-C gene interactions in susceptibility to recurrent spontaneous abortion (this topic is a continuation of the grant finished earlier)

HLA-C is the only polymorphic HLA-I molecule present on the trophoblast. In this study we investigated the role of *ERAP1* and *ERAP2* polymorphisms in the context of KIR and HLA-C genes in women suffering from recurrent spontaneous abortion (RSA) in the Polish population. We tested 285 women who experienced recurrent spontaneous abortion (RSA) and 319 fertile women. We observed a significant association of *ERAP1* rs30187TT genotype with RSA (p=0.02, OR=1.89); however, the most striking association was found in a comparison of patients and controls with *ERAP1* rs30187TT and *KIR* Bx genotypes (p=0.006, OR=2.40). Moreover, this effect was even stronger in *HLA-C2*-positive patients (p=0.0031, OR=3.46). Other weaker associations of the remaining tested ERAP1 rs30187TT genotype itself increased the susceptibility to RSA, but this effect was much stronger in patients positive for *HLA-C2* and *KIR Bx* genotypes. Results were accepted for publication in *Human Immunology*.

Laboratory of Clinical Immunology

Head: Professor Andrzej Lange, M.D., FRCP

Study on lymphocyte populations of hematologic patients 4 months after alloHSCT, i.e. at the time of regenerated haematopoiesis and not being on immunosuppression. The study was based on 18 patients who underwent transplants in our institution last year. The aim of this study was to find symptoms within the immune system which are predictive of a poor outcome

We found that already 10 days after alloHSCT, when the hematologic recovery starts to be clinically relevant, the patients who died due to post-transplant complications had higher proportions of lymphocyte harbouring DR epitope. This finding was even more more significant as a prognostic factor if the same was seen one month after transplant, DR positivity of T cells show on their activation. Therefore, alloresponsiveness post-transplant may play a devastating role, making the patients more vulnerable to the infections agent impact.

The other study performed (STAWREG: RPDS.01.02.01-02-0177/17) resulted in the following observation.

Background: We showed (Blood 2005, 106:4319) that mesenchymal stem cells (MSC) retain the recipient phenotype after HSCT in spite of the presence of full haematological chimera. This and other observations led to the conclusion that in the marrow there are several zones with hematopoietic stem/progenitor cells and mesenchymal stem cells (MSC) at different stages of differentiation that are kept in a dormant state. MSC are recognized as master cells that have a broad potential to differentiate into different tissues. The presence of more differentiated MSC in the quiescent stage in the marrow has not been unequivocally confirmed.

Patients: To address this issue we evaluated the efficacy of marrow cells having MSC markers to improve the vascularization of limbs with ischaemia in 28 patients (4F/24M, age median: 51 range 33-64 years old) or to improve the function of worn-out hips and knees (14 procedures in 13 patients, 9F/4M, age median: 58, range 45-71 years old). These two groups of patients received marrow-derived mononuclear cells injected either into the ischemic leg calf muscles or intra-articular into the hip or knee. Ischemic leg patients received autologous leukophoretic product freshly taken from the marrow cavity. Cells were injected into the calf muscles in about 0.7 mL small portions. Patients with worn-out hips received marrow cells into their joints, which were harvested after 50 ml of the marrow was prepared in the Auto Stem Cell Kit (Pharmed) according to the manufacturer's instructions.

Results: Patients who exhibited improvement in joint function had a higher contribution of CD90+ and CD73+ cells to the CD45-CD34- marrow cell population in cells harvested after preparation in the Auto Stem Cell Kit than patients who suffered from a recurrence of symptoms reported 6 months after the procedure $(5.470\pm2.045\% \text{ vs } 1.607\pm0.128\%, \text{ p=0.012}$ for CD90+ in CD45-CD34- population; $13.154\pm12.550\%$ vs 0.150 ± 0.015 , p=0.020 for CD73 in CD45-CD34- cell population).

In contrast, patients with critical limb ischemia who showed remission before 12 months after intervention received less CD73+ than those whose condition deteriorated $(0.061\pm0.011\% \text{ vs } 0.112\pm0.015\%, p=0.022)$.

Conclusions: Intra-articular injection of CD73+ and CD90+ cells of marrow origin improves joint function, but does not play a positive role in the revascularization process of ischemic legs.

LABORATORY OF BACTERIOPHAGES Head: Professor Andrzej Górski, Ph.D.

Phage re-purposing

Already in the 1980s we formulated a hypothesis according to which endogenous phages (those present in our bodies, primarily in gastrointestinal tract) may exert not only antibacterial but also immunomodulatory properties downregulating aberrant immune responses and inflammation and thereby contributing to immune homeostasis. Our studies carried out in the ensuing years as well as those from other centers have fully supported those assumptions. What is more, most recent data from our group and the Stanford group suggest that phages may also interfere with some viral and fungal infections (phage treatment of non-bacterial infections). In a series of publications of the past two years we have envisaged that those interactions of phages with the immune system may be therapeutically useful in a variety of disorders where aberrant immune response and pathological inflammation play an important role. Those include: allergy, autoimmune liver diseases, inflammatory intestinal disorders, sepsis, Epstein-Virus – mediated pathologies and prostatitis. We believe that this "phage-repurposing" may offer novel forms of treatment in pathologies where current therapy does not allow for adequate control of disease.

Safety Studies of Pneumococcal Endolysins Cpl-1 and Pal

Bacteriophage-derived endolysins have gained increasing attention as potent antimicrobial agents and numerous publications document the in vivo efficacy of these enzymes in various rodent models. However, little has been documented about their safety and toxicity profiles. We investigated preclinical safety and toxicity data for two pneumococcal endolysins, Pal and Cpl-1. A microarray and gene profiling was performed on human macrophages and pharyngeal cells exposed to $0.5 \,\mu$ M of each endolysin for six hours and no change in gene expression was noted. Likewise, in mice injected with 15 mg/kg of each endolysin, no physical or behavioral changes were noted; pro-inflammatory cytokine levels remained constant, and there were no significant changes in the fecal microbiome. Endolysin also did not cause complement activation via the classic pathway, the alternative pathway, or the mannose-binding lectin pathway. In cellular response assays, IgG levels in mice exposed to Pal or Cpl-1 gradually increased for the first 30 days post exposure, but IgE levels never rose above baseline, suggesting that hypersensitivity or allergic reaction is unlikely. Collectively, the safety and toxicity profiles of Pal and Cpl-1 support further preclinical studies.

Searching, isolation and characterization of new therapeutic phages specific for *Acinetobacter baumannii*

The aim of the studies was to procure and initially characterize new lytic bacteriophages (with therapeutic potential) specific to clinical isolates of *Acinetobacter baumannii*. These bacteriophages will be included in the collection of the Laboratory of Bacteriophages and will be used to treat chronic bacterial infections among patients.

Searching for new active phages against *Acinetobacter spp* strains

To find active phages against *Acinetobacter spp* strains (n=36), 364 environmental samples available in laboratory of Bacteriophages collection and 18 newly collected water samples were tested. The study used a standard microbiological phage typing method. For samples that gave pre-positive results, a routine test dilution (RTD) was performed and those samples were amplified.

Bacteriophages from newly collected water samples

From newly collected samples, 11 probably lytic bacteriophages were isolated. In the next study, biological properties and the morphology of phages will be characterized, and the sequence of phages genomes will be determined.

Application of newly obtained phages

Acinetobacter strains have become one of the most dangerous pathogens, classified by World Health Organization as critical priority pathogens which pose a dangerous group of opportunistic bacteria for patients with immunological deficiency. The new 11 phages increase the chance of applying experimental phage therapy in patients with chronic infections caused by *A. baumannii*.

LABORATORY OF BIOLOGY OF STEM AND NEOPLASTIC CELLS Head: Aleksandra Klimczak, Ph.D., D.Sc.

Biological properties of mesenchymal stem/progenitor cells derived from various tissues

Mesenchymal stromal/stem cells (MSCs) constitute a promising tool in regenerative medicine and can be isolated from various human tissues; however, their biological properties are still not fully characterized. MSCs residing in different tissues exhibit many common characteristics, but their biological activity and some markers are different and depend on their tissue of origin. We assessed the maintenance of the basic phenotype of MSCs, their differentiation potential, as well as the mRNA expression profile associated with the pluripotent (Sox2, Oct4), suppressor (p53), and proto-oncogenic (c-Myc) function of the examined MSCs. The stability of multipotency and stemness markers of MSC isolated from different tissues such as: bone marrow (BM-MSC), adipose tissue (AT-MSC), skeletal muscle (SM-MSC) and skin (SK-MSC) were examined in long-term culture up to passage 10.

All studied MSCs showed the basic MSC phenotype CD73, CD90, CD105 stable up to P10; however, their expression decreased with the age of culture, as confirmed by fluorescence intensity. The proangiogenic properties of MSCs were confirmed by CD146 expression, however, long-term culture is unfavorable for maintaining the proangiogenic function of examined MSCs, apart from BM-MSCs. Tissue-origin MSCs, except BM-MSCs, expressed PW1, a marker associated with differentiation capacity and apoptosis. BM-MSCs and AT-MSCs expressed the stemness markers Sox2 and Oct4, corresponding to cells capable of multipotential differentiation, whereas MSCs from skeletal muscles and from the skin revealed a decreased ability to express Sox2 and Oct4 in long-term culture. Genetic stability was confirmed by the stable expression of mRNA for p53 and c-Myc in MSC isolated from bone marrow, adipose tissue and skin. Expression of the mRNA for c-Myc was the highest in AT-MSCs which may be related to their high proliferative potential. The differentiation capacity of BM-MSCs and AT-MSCs into osteo- and chondrogenic lineages was maintained during the follow-up period. In contrast, SK-MSCs and SM-MSCs had a limited capability to differentiate into adipocytes.

The results indicated differences in the biological activity of MSC isolated from various tissues. The studies showed that MSCs with specific biological properties can be used in targeted therapies in which the source of MSCs, cells acquisition, and the duration of the culture will be important for their selection in terms of regenerative potential and genetic stability.

Biology of suppressor myeloid cells of tumor-origin

Working on tumor cell biology, we continued the study on tumor-specific suppressor cells of myeloid-origin (MDSCs) and the modulation of tumor microenvironment influencing anti-tumor activity. We developed a method of isolating myeloid tumor-suppressor cells (MDSCs) specific for prostate cancer TRAMP-C1. A differentiating culture of mouse myeloid cells was performed in the presence of GM-CSF and various concentrations of supernatant collected from TRAMP-C1 cell culture were carried out under hypoxia or normoxia conditions. The results proved that the process of myeloid cells differentiation towards MDSC was most effective in the presence of 75% of supernatant collected from cancer cells cultured in hypoxia conditions. On the sixth day, the culture consisted of almost 80% of monocytic MDSC cells (M-MDSC) and approximately 10% of granulocytic MDSC cells (PMN-MDSC), and these cells were characterized by low expression of surface antigens, e.g. MHC class II, CD86 and PD-L1. These results proved that we obtained myeloid cells at an early stage of differentiation. Inhibition of IL-10 production by M-MDSCs resulted in increased expression of MHC class II and CD86 markers, which may suggests that elimination of IL-10 increases the ability of these cells to differentiate into mature myeloid cells. In turn, the inhibition of IL-10 in PMN-MDSCs increases the expression of PD-L1, which may increase the suppressor activity of these cells in the context to effector T-lymphocytes.

Studies on phenotypic and functional characteristics of MDSC suggest that the modulation of suppressive activity of tumor microenvironment can be helpful in studying the anti-tumor activity of new immunomodulatory agents.

DEPARTMENT OF ANTHROPOLOGY Head: Professor Sławomir Kozieł, Ph.D.

Digit ratio (2D:4D) moderates the change in handgrip strength on an aggressive stimulus: a study among Polish young adults

The ratio of the lengths of second finger (2D) to the fourth (4D) is a putative indicator of foetal hormonal exposure. The link between 2D:4D and physical strength or sports performance in not consistent. It was suggested that the association of 2D:4D with physical ability is better demonstrated in the context of challenge and competition, either real or simulated. However, the evidence is currently limited to a few studies. The objective of this study was to assess whether a video depicting aggressive material could increase muscular strength and if 2D:4D moderated such an increase. We compared outcome measures in two experimental conditions. Lengths of second (2D) and fourth (4D) digits and their ratio (2D:4D) for both hands, height and weight, handgrip strength of both hands. Two hundred fifty healthy young adults (76 female) took part in the study. The mean left-, right- and average HGS values increased after the subjects watched the aforementioned video than after watching the control blank screen. The increase was higher in females compared to males. The increase was higher among the individuals with lower 2D:4D, more clearly among females. The 2D:4D correlated negatively with HGS after subjects were exposed to physically challenging conditions and this relationship is more pronounced in females than in males. Thus, there is a link between prenatal androgenisation and enhanced physical power in challenging situations.

Secular trend and social variation in age at menarche among Polish schoolgirls before and after the political transformation

The aim of the study was to describe the biological results of the political and economic transformations that took place in Poland between 1966 and 2012, based on an analysis of age at menarche, and to determine changes across social groups. Data were collected in 1966,

1978, 1988 and 2012 in several districts of Poland. The study included 34,940 schoolgirls. Age at menarche was assessed with the use of *status quo* method. Definition of socioeconomic status was based on 4 factors: urbanization level, educational level of parents, and family size. When the political and economic situation in Poland improved, a decrease in age at menarche was observed, whereas in years of crisis it was increased. The same social differentiation in menarcheal age observed before the political transformation continued to be present in 2012. Socio-economic changes were significantly associated with age at menarche. Social inequalities, reflected in menarcheal age, continue to be present in Poland.

DEPARTMENT OF MICROBIOLOGY

Laboratory of Molecular Biology of Microorganism (LMBM) Head: Professor Anna Pawlik, Ph.D.

Replication of bacterial chromosomes Polyketide synthesis and its regulation in *Streptomyces*

The research activity of LMBM is focused on two scientific issues: i/ replication of bacterial chromosomes, and ii/ polyketide synthesis in *Streptomyces*.

i/ Chromosome replication is an important event of the bacterial cell cycle. The decision to initiate chromosome replication is crucial for the cell cycle progression and depends both on the intracellular as well as on the environmental signals. We are interested in the mechanisms of the initiation and regulation of bacterial chromosome replication, with special emphasis on the key factors engaged in initiation complex (orisome) formation, namely the initiator protein DnaA, the origin of chromosome replication *oriC* and origin binding proteins oriBPs, which coordinate the initiation of the cell cycle. We are especially interested in orisome formation in Epsilonproteobacteria. Many of the known Epsilonproteobacteria are obligate or facultative human and/or animal pathogens, including Helicobacter pylori and Campylobacter jejuni, which are the leading causes of gastric ulcer/gastric cancer and bacterial foodborne infections worldwide, respectively. The H. pylori oriC is bipartite and consists of two DnaA box clusters and a DNA unwinding element (DUE). The DnaA protein is composed of four domains, which have distinct functions in initiation complex assembly. The C-terminal domain IV is responsible for DNA binding via a helix-turn-helix motif. Domain III belongs to the AAA+ class of proteins. Upon interaction with ATP, domain III changes its conformation, enabling DnaA to properly assemble at oriC and build up a filament. Domain II links domain III and domain I. The N-terminal domain I of some species mediates interaction between individual DnaA molecules; however, the role of this interaction for initiation complex assembly or for DnaA activity is largely unknown. We have recently focused on a detailed analysis of domains I and III of *H. pylori* DnaA, especially in the context of proper DnaA assembly on bipartite H. pylori origin of chromosome replication. Our results revealed the importance of these two domains for DnaA oligomerisation on oriC and ATP-dependent regulation of H. pylori chromosome replication in vitro and in vivo, but also indicated common and unique features of H. pylori DnaA in the context of bacterial imitator DnaA proteins.

ii/ Polyketides is a large class of bioactive compounds with extremely diverse structures and functions. They are synthesized as secondary metabolites by giant multienzyme complexes – polyketide synthases. Our work is focused on a polyketide synthase Cpk from *S. coelicolor* A3(2), which is responsible for the synthesis of a yellow pigment coelimycin. Expression of *cpk* genes is tightly controlled by regulatory proteins encoded by the genes within the *cpk* cluster and most probably by several pleiotropic regulators connected with the regulation of secondary metabolites production as well as *Streptomyces* morphological differentiation. We are interested in deciphering the regulatory circuits governing the synthesis of coelimycin as well as in the discovery of its biological activity.

Laboratory of Signaling Proteins Acting Head: Professor Jakub Siednienko, Ph.D.

Study of the effect of yolkin polypeptide complex on the activation of TLR4 -dependent innate immunity mechanisms on bone marrow derived macrophages BMDM

Innate immunity is the first line of a host's defense mechanism that protects multicellular organisms from infectious disease. The stimulation of innate response is regarded as one of the most important strategies to enhance the body's defense systems, especially in elderly patients, who are more susceptible to bacterial and viral infections and have an increased incidence of autoimmune diseases and malignancy. Macrophages are key innate immune cells of tissue homeostasis with active involvement in primary immune response to the pathogens, tumors, and also neurodegenerative disorders. As professional antigen presenting cells help form the innate and adaptive immune responses producing and releasing a wide spectrum of pro-inflammatory mediators at the early stage of injury or infection.

The results of the conducted research show that polypeptide complex yolkin obtained from hen egg yolk by SEC method can activate BMDM cells to secrete significant amounts of type I Interferons, TNF α and NO. Additionally, sustained activation of ERK 1/2 kinases and upregulation of iNOS expression by yolkin complex was observed. It was also checked if yolkin complex can activate BMDM cells via the TLR4 receptor; however the results obtained were contradictory and did not give an unambiguous answer.

The conducted research allowed us to explain the mechanisms of the protective action of yolkin in the light of research on the use of natural preparations as a therapy supporting the treatment of congenital immunity and viral / bacterial infections.

DEPARTMENT OF TUMOR IMMUNOLOGY Head: Professor Paweł Kisielow, Ph.D.

Laboratory of Molecular and Cellular Immunology Head: Professor Malgorzata Cebrat, Ph.D.

Molecular role of NWC protein during spermatogenesis

NWC is an evolutionarily conserved protein which is expressed at the highest level in testis. Our previous research has shown that, although the NWC-knockout male mice are fertile, the abrogation of NWC expression results in a significant functional impairment of the sperm which manifests itself in the decreased ability of the NWC-KO sperm to compete with WT-sperm in the female reproductive tract. The research undertaken this year aimed at finding the molecular processes during spermatogenesis in which NWC protein could be involved.

The starting point of our investigation was establishing (using immunoprecipitation assay) that NWC interacts with IFT-122 protein, which is a part of the complex involved in intracellular microtubular transport. Our recent experiments have confirmed the possibility of

these proteins interacting by demonstrating their simultaneous, high expression (both at the level of transcription and translation) in some cells from the spermatogenesis pathway - the round spermatids from step 1 to the steps 11-12 of their differentiation. This allowed us to narrow down the search to the developmental stage of reproductive cells, in which the NWC may engage in processes mediated by IFT-122. This interaction has been confirmed using bimolecular fluorescence complementation (BIFC assay), which has also allowed us to determine the fragments of both IFT-122 and NWC proteins involved in this interaction. By replacing the highly conserved fragments of NWC protein, which are present both in vertebrates and invertebrates (including protozoa), with alanine stretches, we have shown that these fragments are indispensible for interaction with IFT-122.

Importantly, our results have shown that the time window of IFT-122 and NWC coexpression coincides with the formation and elongation of flagellar axoneme and the formation of the manchette structure. Thus, the interaction between IFT and NWC can occur during axoneme formation, precursors assembly of auxiliary structures, formation of acrosome vesicle and the first stages of manchette action. We have also started to verify the NWC interaction with other candidate partners involved in these processes. We have shown that:

-NWC interacts directly with IFT122 and Rshp9, but does not interact with Rshp6a or Rab8a;

-IFT122 interacts with NWC, Rshp6a, Rab8a, but does not interact with Rshp9;

-Rshp9 interacts with Rshp6a;

-Rab8a interacts with IFT122 and Rshp9, the interaction with Rshp6a has not been tested yet.

The pattern of interaction between NWC, IFT122 and radial spoke head proteins is particularly interesting, because it indicates the possibility that NWC protein is involved in the assembly of Rshp pre-complexes. The pattern of mutual interactions between them may also suggest the likely architecture of potential complexes. Importantly, the interaction between Rshp9 and Rshp6a was first shown in Chlamydomonas and recently confirmed in recombinant proteins of mice. Thus, with the BIFC system used by our team, we were able to correctly detect this interaction, although it was reported as being difficult to demonstrate using tagged proteins. What is important, radial spoke head proteins are not only the structural part that connects the central pair of microtubules with the outer ones but also act as signal transducers controlling protein phosphorylation. Intriguingly, Rshp6a has been found to be more phosphorylated during sperm capacitation and proposed as a mediating protein in such signalling processes. It is also noteworthy that the interaction between human NWC ortholog (c11orf74) and PP1?2 - testis/sperm enriched variant of ser/tre phosphatase PP1 has been demonstrated. However, confirmation of this interaction in mice is still missing. Any disturbances in the assembly, modifications or transportation of Rshp pre-complexes may translate into functional sperm disorders with different intensity and could potentially explain the observed NWC-KO phenotype. In mammals, mutations in radial spoke proteins are linked to primary cilia dyskinesia; therefore, exploring the processes related to the assembly of the Rshp complexes may be very important for understanding the development of ciliopathies and fertility problems.

The obtained results suggest that NWC could be involved in flagella formation, transportation of constituent elements, preparation of building blocks and/or their biochemical modifications; however, pinpointing the exact mechanism will need further experiments. Any new information concerning IFT and Rshp complexes or other proteins involved in the investigated processes will be beneficial to our understanding of sperm tail formation and, more generally, of the transportation systems involved in the development of motile cilia.

Laboratory of Tumor Immunology Head: Professor Arkadiusz Miążek, Ph.D.

Focal Adhesion Kinase (FAK) inhibitors potentiate cytotoxic activity of anti MHC II-DR antibodies towards canine lymphoma cell lines

Monoclonal antibody (mAb)-mediated crosslinking of major histocompatibility class II antigens (MHC-II) on B-cell lymphomas induces death and survival signals through the concomitant activation of at least three signaling pathways including MAPK, PI3K/Akt and STING. Reportedly, combination treatment aiming at diminishing pro-survival signaling is expected to enhance the efficiency of anti MHC-II mAbs in the context of lymphoma treatment. Here, using three canine B-cell lines and an anti-dog MHC-II DR α antibody B5, we aimed at identifying signaling nodes influencing the efficiency of MHC-II mediated apoptosis. To this end, we found that homotypic cell adhesion, caspase activation, and STING signaling were all necessary for B5 mediated cell death. In contrast, integrin signaling inhibition with two different focal adhesion kinase (FAK) inhibitors at non-cell toxic doses, potentiated B5 induced cell death. Thus, our data support FAK as a potential new target for a combination canine lymphoma treatment.

DEPARTMENT OF EXPERIMENTAL THERAPY Head: Professor Michał Zimecki, Ph.D.

Laboratory of Immunobiology Head: Professor Michał Zimecki, Ph.D.

Effect of recombinant lactoferrins (LF) on activity of natural killer cells

We evaluated the effects of recombinant human lactoferrin (LTF) produced by Chinese hamster ovary cells and a chimera consisting of LF molecule combined with immunoglobulin G Fc fragment (Fc-LTF) on the cytotoxic activity of NK-92 cell line against K562 target cells at a concentration range of 5-60µg/ml. The cytotoxicity of NK-92 cells was measured by lactate dehydrogenase (LDH) test. We also investigated the effects of exogenous IL-2 on this process. We found that both lactoferrins have the ability to stimulate NK cell cytotoxicity. However, the stimulatory efficacy of Fc-LTF construct was higher at all concentrations. A stimulatory effect of IL-2 on cell cytotoxicity was also registered. Next, we plan to investigate the anticipated ability of both lactoferrins to elicit expression of MAP kinases in NK-92 cells and the role of Fc gamma receptor on NK cells in enhancing the cytotoxic action by the chimera.

Effect of yolkin on maturation and activation of immature T and B cells

Yolkin is defined as a set of low molecular weight proteins (35 kDa and less), isolated from egg yolk, of already described procognitive and immunotropic properties. Preliminary studies established its stimulatory action of the humoral immune response and phenotypic changes in T and B lymphocytes. Our working hypothesis assumes that the protein will promote T and B cell maturation and regulate immune functions. In vitro studies demonstrated that yolkin significantly increases the content of CD19+ B cells in bone marrow and spleen. In turn, an increase of single positive T cells in thymus (CD4+ and CD8+) was small. Yolkin stimulated, in addition, the proliferative response of double negative and whole

thymocyte populations to concanavalin A. Yolkin did not induce the expression of signaling proteins associated with apoptosis in Jurkat cells. In contrast, it induced the expression of all MAP kinases (ERK, p-38 and JNK), suggesting that cell differentiation/activation process was triggered. In addition, we showed that yolkin partially prevented the apoptosis of immature WEHI 231 B cells, induced by anti-Ig antibodies, which suggests the promotion of cell differentiation process.

Studies on activity and mechanism of action of MM isoxazole derivatives

Synthesis of a new series of isoxazole derivatives was described and their immunotropic activity was investigated in several in vitro experimental models using human blood lymphocytes and cell lines. The compounds inhibited, to a various degree. phytohemagglutinin A induced proliferation of peripheral blood mononuclear cells. The toxicity of the compounds towards reference A549 cell line was low and dose-dependent. For subsequent studies we selected one compound (5-amino-N'-(2,4-dihydroxyphenyl) methylideno-N,3-dimethylo-1,2-oxazole-4-carbohydrazide). The compound (MM3) inhibited, at low concentrations, the production of tumor necrosis factor alpha induced by lipopolysaccharide in human whole blood culture. In addition, expression of signaling proteins, associated with apoptosis (caspases 3, 7, 8, 9, Fas, Bcl-2, NF- $\kappa\beta$ 1), as well as expression of IL-2 receptor subunits (α, β, γ) , were determined by RT PCR method. In the model of Jurkat cells, MM3 strongly induced expression of mRNA for caspases, Fas and NF- κ B, which suggests its proapoptotic action.

Studies on signaling pathways associated with suppression of immunocompetent cells by an isoxazole derivative RM33

Immunologic activities of immunosuppressive RM33 compound (isoxazolo[5,4-e] triazepine) have been previously described in several in vivo models in mice and rats. However, the mechanism of action of his isoxazole derivative is still unknown. In 2018 we determined the effects of RM33 on the expression of signaling molecules in bone marrow cells, thymocytes and splenocytes. In thymocytes the increases in signaling proteins were as follows: caspase 3 (9.5 x), caspase 9 (222 x), Bcl2 (18 x), Fas (5.6 x), NF-KB1 (10.7 x), NFκB2 (14 x). In splenocytes we observed 5.4-fold stimulation of caspase 3, 2-fold of caspase 9, 22-fold of Fas, 8,7-fold of NFkB1 and 25-fold of NF-kB2. In bone marrow cells caspase 3 was stimulated 2 times, caspase 9 23 times, Fas 19 times, NFkB1 4.8 times and NF-kB2 6,6 times. In the case of MAP kinases the increases of signaling molecule expression were found in thymocytes (p38b and p38 subunits and JNK), in splenocytes (subunits p38a and p38d and exceptionally high in p38g - 200 times, and JNK). On the other hand, in the bone marrow cells increases in ERK2 and p38b were found. The obtained results indicate that RM33 induces a process of apoptosis, dependent mainly on Fas and caspase 9 with the contribution of p38 and NF- κ B. We conclude that apoptosis is predominantly induced in the spleen and thymus and to a lesser degree in bone marrow cells. The project will be continued and will involve an investigation of signaling pathways in T, B cell and macrophage cell lines.

Laboratory of Immunopathology Head: Professor Irena Frydecka, M.D., Ph.D.

Association of genetic variation within *XRCC3* gene with cervical cancer

Genes engaged in DNA repair machine are critical elements in anti-tumour tools. The *XRCC3* gene (NM_001100118.1), an important element of DNA repair network, is located on the 14q32.3 chromosome and encodes a member of the RecA/Rad51-related protein family that participates in homologous recombination to maintain chromosome stability and repair DNA damage. Polymorphic variation of DNA repair enzymes, which may alter the function or repair efficiency, may be responsible for carcinogenesis.

The aim of the study was to evaluate selected *XRCC3* genetic variants as a potential disease risk- and disease-modifying factor.

A population-based, case-control association study was conducted. The research comprised 143 patients (pts) with cervical cancer, treated at Department of Oncology and Gynaecological Oncology Clinic, Wroclaw University of Medicine, and 207 healthy cancer-free women at the time of recruitment (control group). All cases of cervical cancer were histologically defined as cervical squamous cell carcinoma (CSCC), of which 23 cases were well differentiated (G1), 89 cases moderately (G2), and 16 poorly differentiated (G3), and in 15 pts grading was not established. Stage of the disease was classified according the FIGO: stage I=23 pts; II=49 pts; III=53 pts; and IV=9 pts. In nine patients there was no stage description.

The selected *XRCC3*tagSNPs: rs3212079 (c.407-801C>T), rs3212102 (c.562-1081G>T), rs861534 (c.561+809G>T), rs861537 (c.562-1162G>A), rs709399 (c.562-1632C>T), rs12432907 (c.561+1132G>A), and rs1799796 (c.562-14A>G) were genotyped with the Allelic discrimination (AD) technique with use of the appropriate TaqMan[®]SNP Genotyping Assays (C_44801819_10, C_27457316_10, C_2983915_20, C_2983919_10, C_2983918_10, C_2983916_20, and C_2983922_20, respectively). The rs861539 (Thr241Met) SNP was genotyped with use of PCR-RFLP method with using the specific restriction enzymes *Nla*III.

An univariate analysis showed that only 2 from 8 studied *XRCC3*tagSNPs: rs3212079 and rs3212102 were associated with CSCC. One copy of *XRCC3*rs3212079[A] as well as *XRCC3*rs3212102[C] is enough to modify the risk of CSCC (p=0.0002 and p=0.04). Next, a combined association analysis of pointed disease-related markers rs3212079([AA]+[GA]) and rs3212102[CC] revealed an interaction between those two factors since both were crosswise deviated in patients positive to each other (p=9.42x10⁻⁶, OR=5.20, and $p_{Yate's}$ *correction*=0.007, OR=11.28). Furthermore, a combined action of those factors existed when compared relative to their absence (p=2.39x10⁻⁵, OR=8.20).

Haplotypes (in order: rs3212079/rs3212102/rs861534/rs861537/rs861539/rs709399/rs12432907 /rs1799796): ACTTCACC and GCCTTGCT 15.14- and 6.07-fold increased risk of CSCC (p=0.0003, and p=0.003), whereas haplotypes GCCTCACT and GTCTTACT strongly protected against CSCC (p=0.04, OR=0.34, and p=0.03, OR=0.35).

Neither univariate analysis nor haplotype analysis of selected *XRCC3*tagSNPs linked any of those polymorphisms with the response to treatment. Kaplan-Meier analysis and the log-rank test showed no influence of studied *XRCC3* polymorphisms on the progression-free survival.

Additionally, a meta-analysis showed that *XRCC3*rs861539 (Thr241Met) SNP was neither CC nor CSCC risk factor under dominant model as well as on allele level (p=0.36, p=0.59 and p=0.40, p=0.57).

In conclusion, our population-based case-control association study may indicate that *XRCC3*tagSNPs are a CSCC risk factor, but not a prognostic as well as a predictor factor in CSCC patients.

Laboratory of Reproductive Immunology Head: Professor Anna Chełmońska-Soyta, Ph.D, V.D.

Immunological mechanisms associated with reproductive processes in health and disease

Title: IL-24 expression in Treg lymphocytes in women with endometriosis

The aim of the planned studies was to determine the level of IL-24 expression in regulatory T lymphocytes in peripheral blood in healthy women compared to women with endometriosis.

Methods: The study used peripheral blood from 28 women diagnosed with laparoscopy and 28 healthy women as the control group. In order to determine the production of interleukin 24 in regulatory T cells, the blood was stimulated with phorbol 12-myristate 13-acetate (PMA), Brefeldin A and Monensin. Blood lymphocytes were surface-stained with anti-human CD4 antibodies, CD25 and CD127 antigens and intracellular staining was carried out with anti-human interleukin 24 antibodies and the Foxp3 transcription factor. Samples were analyzed with a Fortress LSR flow cytometer.

Results and conclusion: The performed tests for the first time showed the ability of human regulatory T cells with the CD4 + CD127-CD25 + FoxP3 + phenotype for the production of IL-24 and varied levels in patients and healthy people. The research is ongoing.

Expression of TLR2,4,9, MHC class II and costimulatory molecules in splenic B lymphocytes (CD19 +) in the normal model (CBA / 2JxBALB / c) and abortion-prone pregnancy (CBA / 2JxDBA / 2J)

The aim of the study was to determine the expression of TLRs and co-stimulatory molecules in B-cells in the mouse abortion-prone model as a component of the process of regulating the level of immune tolerance in pregnancy.

Methods: The expression of co-stimulatory molecules: CD80, CD86, CD40 and MHC class II, as well as toll like receptors: TLR9, TLR4, TLR2 on splenic B lymphocytes (CD19 +) was determined in both groups of pregnant mice on the day 3 (preimplantation) and on day 14 (period of stabilized mother-fetal contact) of pregnancy using flow cytometry.

Results: The obtained data allow us to state that on day 14, during normal and abortionprone pregnancy, there was an overall reduction in the number of CD19 + lymphocytes in the spleen compared to the 3rd day of pregnancy. On day 3 of pregnancy, there was also a decrease in TLR4 expression and an increase in TLR9 expression on B lymphocytes in females in normal pregnancy. In addition, lower expression of CD86 is observed as well as higher expression of CD40 on test lymphocytes in pregnant females. There were no differences in protein expression for MHC II and TLR2 between the examined groups. All the differences in protein expression described above were observed only at the 3rd day of pregnancy.

Conclusions: The differential expression of TLRs and costimulatory molecules in maternal splenic B cells in normal and abortion prone pregnancy indicates their presumptive contribution to the development of fetal tolerance.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMUNOLOGY OF INFECTIOUS DISEASES Head: Professor Andrzej Gamian, Ph.D.

Laboratory of Medical Microbiology Head: Professor Andrzej Gamian, Ph.D.

Studies on the pathogenesis of some diseases of bacterial etiology and a role of phages and bacterial surface glycoconjugates and protein antigens in immune response, as well as studies on probiotics proteins and glycoconjugates, structure and role in immunity

The main area of studies in our laboratory is focused on mechanisms of pathogenicity of diseases with bacterial etiology, the role of bacterial glycoconjugates and proteins in the immune processes, the structure and functions of bacterial exopolysaccharides, including these from probiotics. The structural studies of bacterial antigens revealed that surface polysaccharide of actinomycetal representative Tsukamurella pulmonis is arabinomannan with a structure similar to antigens from *Mycobacterium tuberculosis*. Monoclonal antibodies against this polysaccharide allowed us to identify T. pulmonis in granules located intracellularly when immunohistochemically stained. Ultrastructural studies proved the presence of T. pulmonis cells in these granulations. These results indicate the possibility for application of these monoclonal antibodies in diagnostics. Concerning the studies on bacteriophage adhesins, the experiments with atomic force microscopy allowed us to determine interaction forces of adhesin from T4 phage specific to E. coli B LPS, in relation to not interacting nonspecific lipopolysaccharides. Phage protein gp37 was used to functionalize the surface with Ti, Au and Ru in order to bind E. coli cells, which showed that the best biosensor in terms of specificity and yield were surfaces functionalized with titanium to bind proteins recognizing bacteria. Identification of bacteria with MALDI mass spectrometry was performed on a group of Yersinia enterocolytica strains isolated from humans, pigs and animals from the zoological garden, as well as on *Staphylococcus haemolyticus* from the milk of cows with inflammatory disease, and also on *Campylobacter* strains derived from poultry. These studies are important from the epidemiological point of view. Studies focused on determining the biological activities of probiotic strains of Lactobacillus have led to the identification of polysaccharides with immunomodulating properties or lowering the hypersensitivity. Several polysaccharides have been tested in in vivo experiments in mice models of the allergy to check their therapeutic properties. Results indicate a distinct therapeutic potential of Lactobacillus polysaccharides toward allergy treatment. These studies are pioneering in the world towards an understanding of the role of probiotics polysaccharides in immune system activation. Immunochemical studies are crucial for understanding biological functions and interactions of bacteria with the host and bacteria with other microorganisms.

Laboratory of Virology Head: Professor Egbert Piasecki, Ph.D.

Oncolytic vesicular stomatitis virus (VSV) can be delivered intravenously to target primary and metastatic lesions, but the interaction between human peripheral blood leukocytes (PBLs) and VSV remains poorly understood. Our study aimed to assess the overall immunological consequences of ex vivo infection of PBLs with VSV. Phenotypic analysis of lymphocyte subsets and apoptosis were evaluated with flow cytometry. Caspase 3/7 activity was detected by luminescence assay. Virus release was evaluated in a murine cell line (L929).

Gene expression and cytokine/chemokine secretion were assessed by real-time PCR and multiplex assay, respectively. Ex vivo infection of PBLs with VSV elicited upregulated expression of RIG-I, MDA-5, tetherin, IFITM3, and MxA. VSV infection triggered rapid differentiation of blood monocytes into immature dendritic cells as well as their apoptosis, which depended on caspase 3/7 activation. Monocyte differentiation required infectious VSV, but loss of CD14+ cells was also associated with the presence of a cytokine/chemokine milieu produced in response to VSV infection. In conclusion, systemic delivery is a major goal in the field of oncolytic viruses. Our results shed further light on immune mechanisms in response to VSV infection and the underlying VSV-PBL interactions, bringing hope for improved cancer immunotherapies, particularly those based on intravenous delivery of oncolytic VSV. The results were published in *Journal of Innate Immunity, 2018; 10: 131-144*.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMUNOCHEMISTRY Head: Professor Czesław Ługowski, Ph.D.

Laboratory of Glicoconjugates Head: Professor Marcin Czerwiński, Ph.D.

Role of ceramide galactosyltransferase (UGT8) and galactosylceramide (GalCer) in drug resistance of breast cancer cells

It was previously shown that GalCer increases resistance of tumor cells to stress induced apoptosis and its expression is elevated in multidrug resistant cells. To further reveal the role of UGT8 and GalCer in breast cancer progression, tumorigenicity and response for the treatment of control 4T1 cells (4T1.PURO) and 4T1 doxorubicin. cells (4T1.PURO/UGT8) with overexpressed UGT8 and GalCer was studied in vivo in BALB/c mice. The cells were transplanted orthotopically into the mice. Four weeks after cancer cell transplantation, statistically important decreases in volumes were observed in the case of 4T1.PURO tumors in comparison to tumors formed by 4T1.PURO/UGT8 cells after demonstrates that doxorubicin treatment. This study increased synthesis of galactosyloceramide increases resistance cancer cells to anticancer drugs such as doxorubicin.

Antigens of human blood group system P1PK in birds

It was shown before that some birds express antigens belonging to human P1PK blood group system. We showed that there are differences in the expression level between birds belonging to *Neoaves*. Purified glycosphingolipids obtained from red blood cells contained GlcCer, LacCer and Gb3Cer and were bound by Shiga toxin subunit Stx1B. In addition to the *Columba livia* gene encoding Gb3/CD77 synthase (*A4GALT*), a homologous gene from the same species was cloned and sequenced. It contains 55 amino acid differences in comparison to *A4GALT* described previously. We hypothesize that enzymes encoded by these genes differ in specificity, so the genes will be cloned, expressed in 2102Ep cells and analyzed by flow cytometry.

Glycosylation Ex vivo as a method to obtain cells of rare phenotype

Ex vivo glycosylation is a method by which new glycoconjugates on the surface of the cells can be synthesized using recombinant glycosyltransferases. Using insect cell-expressed Gb3/CD77 synthase and rare p red blood cells, we obtained red blood cells with P₁ phenotype, which contained P1 and P^k antigens. These data show that recombinant glycosyltransferases

may serve as a valuable tool to change the blood group of erythrocytes and synthesize glycoproteins and glycolipids on the cell surface.

Laboratory of Microbial Immunochemistry and Vaccines Head: Professor Jolanta Łukasiewicz, Ph.D.

Biochemical characteristics of macromolecules involved in immunological processes. Immunochemical studies of bacterial endotoxins

A variety of Gram-negative species, such as *Klebsiella pneumoniae, Escherichia coli, Hafnia alvei, Proteus penneri*, and *P. mirabilis,* represent opportunistic human pathogens associated with extraintestinal and nosocomial infections in humans and animals. Moreover, *K. pneumoniae*, particularly ESBL- and KPC-strains, has been singled out in 2017 as "*priority 1. critical pathogen*" for health care by the WHO, CDC, and the UK Department of Health. Major virulence factors and surface antigens of these species are: lipopolysaccharide (LPS, endotoxin, O antigen), capsules (antigen K, i.e. capsular polysaccharide - CPS and exopolysaccharide - EPS), and fimbriae. LPS is built up of lipid A, core oligosaccharide (OS), and O-specific polysaccharide (O-PS). LPS and CPS determine O serotype or K serotype, respectively. Precisely, O serotype is defined by O-PS region built up of carbohydrate repeating units.

Some K antigens and O antigens seem to be promising targets for antibody-based therapy (active and passive immunisation) against infections as an alternative to antibiotics. For more variable LPS within the O-PS region, as for *E. coli* LPS, core OS was suggested as a conservative region and a promising target for therapeutic antibodies. To make such immunotherapy effective, complete knowledge about LPS, O/K antigens' structure and their distribution among clinical isolates (seroepidemiology) is required.

At first we continued our studies on diversity of *K. pneumoniae* O antigens and their use as immunogens for the generation of cross-protective human and humanised monoclonal antibodies (mAb) as a therapeutic and diagnostic tool against *Klebsiella* infections. In collaboration with Max Planck Institute for Infection Biology (Berlin), Cancer Research Center (Heidelberg), and Arsanis GmbH (Vienna), we generated and described a panel of affinity-matured human mAb from peripheral blood immunoglobulin M–positive (IgM+) and IgA+ memory B cells and clonally related intestinal plasmablasts, directed against *K. pneumoniae* O1, O2, and LPS (Rollenske T. et al. *Nature Immunol* 2018). The mAb showed distinct patterns of *in vivo* cross-specificity and protection against different clinically relevant *K. pneumoniae* serotypes (including O3, O3a, O3b cross-reactivity). Moreover, cross-specificity was not limited to *K. pneumoniae*, and 40% of mAb revealed cross-reactivity with non-*K. pneumoniae* antigens, such as *P. luteola* LPS, *S. cerevisiae* bacteria, and gp140 HIV protein. Effective candidates have been chosen for further development of mAb-based therapy against *Klebsiella* infections.

Further, we have identified the new type of the core OS in *P. penneri* 40A and 41 LPS. The new type of structure is typical for *P. penneri* core regions in its inner part and represents glycoform III containing Kdo and Ara4N residues, rich heptose region (5 residues), Glcp, and GalpA. Identification of new chemotype was a result of outer core trisaccharide structure built up of (β -D-Galp-(1 \rightarrow 4)- α -D-GlcpNAc-(1 \rightarrow 4)- α -D-GalpN6OAc), and particularly terminal β -D-Galp determining serospecificity of this core type. The new core OS serotype has extended the core OS serotypes scheme for *Proteus* spp. and confirmed the huge structural heterogeneity of *P. penneri* LPSs, a unique phenomenon among other *Enterobacteriaceae*. The study supported the conclusion that the identification of the most common outer part of

the core OS is necessary to develop core OS-based vaccine against *Proteus* infections (Palusiak A. Int J Mol Sci. 2018). Additionally, the impact of planktonic and biofilm lifestyles of the clinical isolate *P. mirabilis* 9B-m on its LPS structure has been evaluated. By structural analyses of LPS we demonstrated that the structure of P. mirabilis 9B-m O-PS did not depend on the form of cell growth; however, the length of the O-PS was reduced when bacteria grew in biofilm. Additionally, some minor changes have been observed in core OS region – PEtn and AraN substitution (Zabłotni A. Med Microbiol Immunol. 2018). No lipid A modifications were observed. Future studies will show the significance of these changes on the pathogenicity of this species.

To conclude, we have demonstrated that a variety of Gram-negative LPS react strongly with human and murine mannose-binding lectins (MBL). *Hafnia alvei* LPS was used as a model pathogen to investigate the biological consequences of these interactions. MBL-binding motifs of LPS are accessible to MBL on the surface of bacterial cells and LPS aggregates. The LPS core OS–MBL interactions led to complement activation and also induced an anaphylactoid shock in mice. Our results contribute to a better understanding of MBL–LPS interaction and may support development of therapeutic strategies against sepsis based on complement inhibition (Man-Kupisinska A. et al. Front Immunol. 2018).

Publications – 2018

Articles published in the journals from Thomson Reuters Master List:

- Anisiewicz A., Pawlik A., Filip-Psurska B., Turlej E., Dzimira S., Milczarek M., Gdesz K., Papiernik D., Jarosz J., Kłopotowska D., Kutner A., Mazur A., Wietrzyk J.: Unfavorable effect of calcitriol and its low-calcemic analogs on metastasis of 4T1 mouse mammary gland cancer. *Int J Oncology*, 2018, 52(1): 103-126, **IF 3,571 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- Anger N., Rossowska J.: Komórki supresorowe pochodzenia mieloidalnego jako potencjalny cel terapii przeciwnowotworowych. *Post Hig Med Dośw.*, 2018, 72:1179-1198, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- Antoszczak M., Urbaniak A., Delgado M., Maj E., Borgstrom B., Wietrzyk J., Huczynski A., Yuan Y., Chambers T.C., Strand D.: Biological activity of doubly modified salinomycin analogs – evaluation *in vitro* and *ex vivo*. *European Journal of Medicinal Chemistry*, 2018, 156: 510-523, IF 4,833 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- Arbulo-Echevarria M.M., Narbona-Sánchez I., Fernandez-Ponce C.M., Vico-Barranco I., Rueda-Ygueravide M.D., Dustin M.L., Miazek A., Duran-Ruiz M.C., García-Cózar F., Aguado E.: A stretch of negatively charged amino acids of linker for activation of T-cell adaptor has a dual role in T-cell antigen receptor intracellular signaling. *Front Immunol.*, 2018, 9:115, **IF 4,716 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- Artym J., Kocięba M., Zaczyńska E., Kochanowska I., Zimecki M., Kałas W., Fiedorowicz A., Pawlak A., Strządała L., Jeleń M., Morak-Młodawska B., Pluta K., Kaleta-Kuratewicz K., Madej J.P., Kuropka P., Kuryszko J.: Topically applied azaphenothiazines inhibit experimental psoriasis in mice. *Int. Immunopharmacol.* 2018, 59:276–286, **IF 3,361 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 6. Bartmańska A., Tronina T., Popłoński J., Milczarek M., Filip-Psurska B., Wietrzyk J.: Highly cancer selective antiproliferative activity of natural prenylated flavonoids. *Molecules*, 2018, 23(11), 2922, **IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 7. Artym J., Kocięba M., Zaczyńska E., Zimecki M., Jeleń M., Morak-Młodawska B., Pluta K., Kaleta-Kuratewicz K., Madej J.P., Kuropka P., Kuryszko J.:: Topically applied

azaphenothiazines inhibit contact sensitivity to oxazolone in mice. *Histol Histopathol.*, 2018, 33(2):223-236, **IF 1,777 (25 pkt MNiSW)**

- 8. Bączkowicz D., Skiba G., Czerner M., Majorczyk E.: Gait and functional status analysis before and after total knee arthroplasty. *Knee*, 2018, t. XXV, s.888-896, **IF 1,762 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- Artym J., Kocięba M., Zaczyńska E., Adamik B., Kübler A., Zimecki M., Kruzel M.: Immunomodulatory properties of human recombinant lactoferrin in mice: Implications for therapeutic use in humans. *Adv Clin Exp Med.*, 2018, 27:391-399, IF 1,227 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- Bełcik M.K., Trusz-Zdybek A., Zaczyńska E., Czarny A., Piekarska K.: Genotoxic and cytotoxic properties of PM2.5 collected over the year in Wrocław (Poland). *Science of the Total Environment*, 2018, 637-638:480-497, IF 5,589 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- Bińkowska A., Biernat M.M., Łaczmański Ł., Gościniak G.: Molecular patterns of resistance among *Helicobacter pylori* strains in south-western Poland. *Front Microbiol*, 2018, 9:3154, IF 4,259 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 12. Boratyński P.J., Gałęzowska J., Turkowiak K., Anisiewicz A., Kowalczyk R., Wietrzyk J.: Triazole biheterocycles from *Cinchona* alkaloids: coordination and antiproliferative properties. *Chemistry Select*, 2018, 3 (32): 9368-9373, **IF 1,716**
- Borysowski J., Saxena A., Bateman-House A., Papaluca M., Różyńska J., Wnukiewicz-Kozłowska A., Górski A.: Expanded access: growing importance to public health. *J Epidemiol Community Health*, 2018, 72(7):557-558, IF 3,872 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- Brzozowska E., Leśniewski A., Sęk S., Wieneke R., Tampé R., Górska S., Jönsson-Niedziółka M., Niedziółka-Jönsson J.: Interactions of bacteriophage T4 adhesin with selected lipopolysaccharides studied using atomic force microscopy. *Scientific Reports*, 2018, 8:10935, IF 4,011 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 15. Buczek E., Denslow A., Mateuszuk Ł., Proniewski B., Wojcik T., Sitek B., Fedorowicz A., Jasztal A., Kus E., Chmura-Skirlinska A., Gurbiel R., Wietrzyk J., Chlopicki S.: Alterations in NO- and PGI2- dependent function in aorta in the orthotopic murine model of metastatic 4T1 breast cancer: relationship with pulmonary endothelial dysfunction and systemic inflammation. *BMC Cancer*, 2018, 18:582, **IF 2,933 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- Butrym A., Kryczek I., Dłubek D., Jaskula E., Lange A., Jurczyszyn A., Mazur G.: High expression of CC chemokine receptor 5 (CCR5) promotes disease progression in patients with B-cell non-Hodgkin lymphomas. *Curr Probl Cancer*, 2018, 42(2):268-275, IF 3,698 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 17. Butrym A., Łacina P., Kuliczkowski K., Bogunia-Kubik K., Mazur G.: Genetic variation of the gene coding for microRNA-204 (miR-204) is a risk factor in acute myeloid leukaemia. *BMC Cancer*, 2018, 30;18(1):107, **IF 2,933 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- Bylińska A., Wilczyńska K., Malejczyk J., Milewski Ł., Wagner M., Jasek J., Niepiekło-Miniewska W., Wiśniewski A., Płoski R., Barcz E., Roszkowski P., Kamiński P., Malinowski A., Wilczyński J.R., Radwan P., Radwan M., Kuśnierczyk P., Nowak I.: The impact of HLA-G, LILRB1 and LILRB2 gene polymorphisms on susceptibility to and severity of endometriosis. *Mol Genet Genomics*, 2018, 293(3):601-613, IF 2,879 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- Ciechomska M., Bonek K., Merdas M., Zarecki P., Swierkot J., Gluszko P., Bogunia-Kubik K., Maslinski W.: Changes in miRNA-5196 expression as a potential biomarker of anti-TNF-α therapy in rheumatoid arthritis and ankylosing spondylitis patients. *Arch Immunol Ther Exp (Warsz)*, 2018, 66(4):389-397, **IF 2,878 (25 pkt MNiSW**)
- 20. Chachaj A., Puła B., Chabowski M., Grzegrzółka J., Szahidewicz-Krupska E., Karczewski M., Janczak D., Dzięgiel P., Podhorska-Okołów M., Mazur G., Gamian A.,

Szuba A.: Role of the lymphatic system in the pathogenesis of hypertension in humans. *Lymphat Res Biol.*, 2018, 16(2):140-146, **IF 1,493 (25 pkt MNiSW)**

- Chachaj A., Wiśniewski J., Rybka J., Butrym A., Biedroń M., Krzystek-Korpacka M., Fleszar M.G., Karczewski M., Wróbel T., Mazur G., Gamian A., Szuba A.: Asymmetric and symmetric dimethylarginines and mortality in patients with hematological malignancies-A prospective study. *PLoS One*, 2018, 22;13(5):e0197148, IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 22. Czajkowska A., Szponar B.: Short chain fatty acids (SCFA), the products of gut bacteria metabolism and their role in the host. *Postępy Higieny i Medycyny Doświadczalnej*, 2018, 72:131-142, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 23. Czarnecka M., Świtalska M., Wietrzyk J., Maciejewska G., Gliszczyńska A: Synthesis and biological evaluation of phosphatidylcholines with cinnamic and 3-methoxycinnamic acids with potent antiproliferative activity. *RSC Adv.*, 2018, 8: 35744-35752, **IF 3,049** (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 24. Czarnecka M., Świtalska M., Wietrzyk J., Maciejewska G., Gliszczyńska A.: Synthesis, characterization, and *in vitro* cancer cell growth inhibition evaluation of novel phosphatidylcholines with anisic and veratric acids. *Molecules*, 2018, 23 (8): 2022, **IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- Danel D.P., Valentova J.V., Sánchez O.R., Leongómez J.D., Varella M.A.C., Kleisner K.: A cross-cultural study of sex-typicality and averageness: Correlation between frontal and lateral measures of human faces. *American Journal of Human Biology*, 2018. 30(5):e23147, IF 1,438 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 26. Danel D.P., Wacewicz S., Lewandowski Z., Żywiczyński P., Perea-Garcia J.O.: Humans do not perceive conspecifics with a greater exposed sclera as more trustworthy: a preliminary cross-ethnic study of the function of the overexposed human sclera. *Acta Ethologica*, 2018, 21(3): 203–208, **IF 0,966 (20 pkt MNiSW)**
- 27. Dobrut A., Brzozowska E., Górska S., Pyclik M., Gamian A., Bulanda M., Majewska E., Brzychczy-Włoch M.: Epitopes of immunoreactive proteins of *Streptococcus agalactiae*: enolase, inosine 5'-monophosphate dehydrogenase and molecular chaperone GroEL. *Front Cell Infect Microbiol.*, 2018, 8:349, **IF 3,518 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 28. Drab M.: Phage aggregation-dispersion by ions: striving beyond antibacterial therapy. *Trends Biotechnol.*, 2018, 36(9):875-881, **IF 13,747** (**45 pkt MNiSW**)
- 29. Dudek M., Deiana M., Pokladek Z., Pawlik K., Matczyszyn K.: Reversible photocontrol of DNA melting by visible-light-responsive F4-coordinated azobenzene compounds. *Chem A Eur J*, 2018, 24(71):18963-18970, **IF 5,160** (**40 pkt MNiSW**)
- 30. Dzimitrowicz A., Bielawska-Pohl A., diCenzo G.C., Jamroz P., Macioszczyk J., Klimczak A., Pohl P.: Pulse-modulated radio-frequency alternating-current-driven atmospheric-pressure glow discharge for continuous-flow synthesis of silver nanoparticles and evaluation of their cytotoxicity toward human melanoma cells. *Nanomaterials*, 2018, 8, **IF 4,034 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- Fandzloch M., Dobrzańska L., Jezierska J., Filip-Psurska B., Wiśniewska J., Wietrzyk J., Salas J.M., Łakomska I.: In search of new anticancer drug – Dimethylsulfoxide ruthenium(III) complex with bulky triazolopyrimidine derivative and preliminary studies towards understanding the mode of action. *Polyhedron*, 2018, 141: 239-246, IF 2,284 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- Fink K., Kobak K., Kasztura M., Boratyński J., Goszczyński T.M.: Synthesis and biological activity of thymosin β4-anionic boron cluster conjugates. *Bioconjugate Chem.*, 2018, 29: 3509-3515, IF 4,349 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 33. Fiszer-Maliszewska Ł., Łaczmański Ł., Dolińska A., Jagas M., Kołodziejska E., Jankowska M., Kuśnierczyk P.: Polymorphisms of ABCB1, CYP3A4 and CYP3A5

genes in ovarian cancer and treatment response in Poles. Anticancer Res., 2018, 38(3):1455-1459, IF 1,935 (20 pkt MNiSW)

- Frydecka D., Krzystek-Korpacka M., Lubeiro A., Stramecki F., Stańczykiewicz B., Beszłej J.A., Piotrowski P., Kotowicz K., Szewczuk-Bogusławska M., Pawlak-Adamska E., Misiak B.: Profiling inflammatory signatures of schizophrenia: A cross-sectional and meta-analysis study. *Brain Behav Immun.*, 2018, 71:28-36, IF 6,170 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 35. Futoma K., Klimczak A.: Nerwiaki pourazowe przyczyną poamputacyjnego bólu neuropatycznego: epidemiologia, mechanizmy i czynniki zaangażowane w powstawaniu bólu. *Post Hig Med Dośw*, 2018, 72:937-952, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 36. Gaasterland C.M.W., Jansen-van der Weide M.C., Vroom E., Leeson-Beevers K., Kaatee M., Kaczmarek R., Bartels B., van der Pol W.L., Roes K.C.B., van der Lee J.H.: The POWER-tool: recommendations for involving patient representatives in choosing relevant outcome measures during rare disease clinical trial design. *Health Policy*, 2018, 122(12):1287-1294, **IF 2,075 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 37. Gilewska A., Masternak J., Kazimierczuk K., Trynda J., Wietrzyk J., Barszcz B.: Synthesis, structure, DNA binding and anticancer activity of mixed ligand ruthenium(II) complex. J. Mol. Structure, 2018, 1155: 288-296, **IF 2,120 (20 pkt MNiSW)**
- 38. Gilowska I., Kasper Ł., Bogacz K., Szczegielniak J., Szymasek T., Kasper M., Czerwinski M., Sładek K., Majorczyk E.: Impact of matrix metalloproteinase 9 on COPD development in polish patients: genetic polymorphism, protein level, and their relationship with lung function. *Biomed Res Int.* 2018, 2018:6417415, IF 2,197 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 39. Gomula A., Koziel S.: Secular trend and social variation in age at menarche among Polish schoolgirls before and after the political transformation. *American Journal of Human Biology*, 30(1):e23048, **IF 1,438 (35 pkt MNiSW**)
- 40. Goszczynski T.M., Fink K., Boratynski J.: Icosahedral boron clusters as modifying entities for biomolecules. *Expert Opin Biol Ther*, 2018, 18:205-213, **IF 3,585 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- Gozdziewicz T.K., Lugowski C., Lukasiewicz J.: First evidence for a covalent linkage between enterobacterial common antigen and lipopolysaccharide in Shigella sonnei phase II ECALPS. *J Biol Chem.*, 2018, 293(29):11652-11653, IF 4,106 (35 pkt MNiSW); korekta
- 42. Górska S., Rydosz A., Brzozowska E., Drab M., Wincza K., Gamian A., Gruszczyński S.: Effectiveness of sensors contact metallization (Ti, Au, and Ru) and biofunctionalization for Escherichia coli detection. *Sensors (Basel)*, 2018, 18(9), IF 3,031 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Międzybrodzki R., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Borysowski J.: Bacteriophages targeting intestinal epithelial cells: a potential novel form of immunotherapy. *Cell Mol Life Sci.* 2018, 75(4):589-595, IF 7,014 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 44. Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Międzybrodzki R., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Borysowski J.: Phage therapy in allergic disorders? *Exp Biol Med* (*Maywood*), 2018, 243(6):534-537, **IF 3,005 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Międzybrodzki R., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Borysowski J., Letkiewicz S., Bagińska N., Sfanos K.S.: Phage therapy in prostatitis: recent prospects. *Front Microbiol.*, 2018, 9:1434, Review, IF 4,259 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 46. Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Międzybrodzki R., Borysowski J.: Therapeutic potential of phages in autoimmune liver diseases. *Clin Exp Immunol.*, 2018,192(1):1-6, Review, **IF 3,711 (30 pkt MNiSW)**

- 47. Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Międzybrodzki R., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Borysowski J.: Phage transplantation in allotransplantation: possible treatment in graftversus-host disease? *Front Immunol.*, 2018, 9:941, **IF 4,716 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 48. Górski A., Międzybrodzki R., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Bagińska N., Borysowski J.: Perspectives of phage-eukaryotic cell interactions to control Epstein-Barr virus infections. *Front Microbiol.*, 2018, 9:630, **IF 4,259 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 49. Górski A., Międzybrodzki R., Łobocka M., Głowacka-Rutkowska A., Bednarek A., Borysowski J., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Bagińska N., Letkiewicz S., Dąbrowska K., Scheres J.: Phage therapy: What have we learned? *Viruses*, 2018, 10(6), Review, **IF 3,811 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 50. Grudzień M., Rapak A.: Effect of natural compounds of NK cell activation. *J Immunol Res.*, 2018:4868417, **IF 3,404 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 51. Hałdys K., Goldeman W., Jewgiński M., Wolińska E., Anger N., Rossowska J., Latajka R.: Inhibitory properties of aromatic thiosemicarbazones on mushroom tyrosinase: Synthesis, kinetic studies, molecular docking and effectiveness in melanogenesis inhibition. *Bioorg Chem*, 2018, 81:577-586, **IF 3,926 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 52. Harada L.K., Silva E.C., Campos W.F., Del Fiol F.S., Vila M., Dąbrowska K., Krylov V.N., Balcão V.M.: Biotechnological applications of bacteriophages: State of the art. *Microbiological Research*, 2018, 212-213:38-58, **IF 3,701 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- Harhala M., Barylski J., Huminska K., Lecion D., Wojciechowicz J., Lahutta K., Kuś M., Kropinski A.M., Nowak S., Nowicki G., Hodyra-Stefaniak K., Dąbrowska K.: Two novel lysogenic bacteriophages infecting *Streptococcus pyogenes*: their genomes, morphology and stability. *PLoS One*, 2018, 10.1371/journal.pone.0205995, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 54. Harhala M., Nelson D., Miernikiewicz P., Heselpoth R., Brzezicka B., Majewska J., Linden S., Shang X., Szymczak A., Lecion D., Marek-Bukowiec K., Klak M., Wojciechowicz W., Lahutta K., Konieczny A., Dąbrowska K.: Safety studies of Streptococcal endolysins Cpl-1 and PAL. *Viruses*, 2018, 10, 638, IF 3,811 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 55. Hołówka J., Trojanowski D., Janczak M., Jakimowicz D., Zakrzewska-Czerwińska J.: The origin of chromosomal replication is ssymmetrically positioned on the mycobacterial nucleoid, and the timing of its firing depends on HupB. *J. Bacteriol.*, 2018, 200(10), **IF 3,234 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 56. Indrová M., Rossowska J., Pajtasz-Piasecka E., Mikyšková R., Richter J., Rosina J., Sedlacek R., Fišerová A.: The role of immune cell subpopulations in the growth and rejection of TC-1/A9 tumors in novel mouse strains differing in the H2-D haplotype and NKC domain. Oncol Lett., 2018, 15:3594-3601, IF 1,871 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 57. Iwaszko M., Świerkot J., Kolossa K., Jeka S., Wiland P., Bogunia-Kubik K.: Influence of NKG2D genetic variants on response to anti-TNF agents in patients with rheumatoid arthritis. *Genes (Basel)*, 2018, 9(2), **IF 3,331 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- Janczewski Ł., Gajda A., Frankowski S., Goszczyński T.M., Gajda T.: T3P® a benign desulfurating reagent in the synthesis of isothiocyanates. *Synthesis*, 2018, 50:1141-1151, IF 2,867 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 59. Janczewski Ł., Psurski M., Świtalska M., Gajda A., Goszczyński T.M., Oleksyszyn J., Wietrzyk J., Gajda T.: Design, synthesis and evaluation of ω-(isothiocyanato)alkylphosphinates and phosphine oxides as antiproliferative agents. *ChemMedChem.*, 2018, 13 (1):105-115, **IF 3,016 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 60. Janik M.E., Szwed S., Grzmil P., Kaczmarek R., Czerwiński M., Hoja-Łukowicz D.: RTqPCR analysis of human melanoma progression-related genes - a novel workflow for

selection and validation of candidate reference genes. *Int J Biochem Cell Biol.*, 2018, 101:12-18, **IF 3,144 (35 pkt MNiSW)**

- Jarząb A., Witkowska D., Ziomek E., Setner B., Czajkowska A., Dorot M., Szewczuk Z., Gamian A.: Cyclic OmpC peptidic epitope conjugated to tetanus toxoid as a potential vaccine candidate against shigellosis. *Vaccine*, 2018, 36(31):4641-4649, IF 3,269 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 62. Jaskiewicz E., Peyrard T., Kaczmarek R., Zerka A., Jodlowska M., Czerwinski M.: The Gerbich blood group system: old knowledge, new importance. *Transfus Med Rev.*, 2018, 32:111-116, **IF 3,610 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 63. Jaworski P., Donczew R., Mielke T., Weigel C., Stingl K., Zawilak-Pawlik A.: Structure and function of the *Campylobacter jejuni* chromosome replication origin. *Front Microbiol*, 2018, 9:1533, **IF 4,259 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- Jaźwiec P., Gać P., Chaszczewska-Markowska M., Bogunia-Kubik K., Mazur G., Poręba R.: Genetically determined enlargement of carotid body evaluated using computed angiotomography. *Respir Physiol Neurobiol.*, 2018, 254:10-15, IF 1,582 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 65. Kaczmarek R.: Do adventitious viruses carried by insect cell lines producing AAV vectors pose a safety risk in gene therapy? *Haemophilia*, 2018, 24(6):843-844, **IF 3,590** (**30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 66. Kaczmarek R., Szymczak-Kulus K., Bereźnicka A., Mikołajczyk K., Duk M., Majorczyk E., Krop-Watorek A., Klausa E., Skowrońska J., Michalewska B., Brojer E., Czerwinski M.: Single nucleotide polymorphisms in A4GALT spur extra products of the human Gb3/CD77 synthase and underlie the P1PK blood group system. *PLoS One.*, 2018, 13:e0196627, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 67. Kania G., Sternak M., Jasztal A., Chlopicki S., Błażejczyk A., Nasulewicz-Goldeman A., Wietrzyk J., Jasiński K., Skórka T., Zapotoczny S., Nowakowska M.: Uptake and bioreactivity of charged chitosan-coated superparamagnetic nanoparticles as promising contrast agents for magnetic resonance imaging. *Nanomedicine*, 2018, 14 (1):131-140, **IF 4,717 (40 pkt MNiSW**)
- 68. Karabon L., Markiewicz M., Chrobot K., Dzierzak-Mietla M., Pawlak-Adamska E., Partyka A., Koclega A., Kyrcz-Krzemien S., Frydecka I.: The influence of genetic variations in the CD86 gene on the outcome after allogeneic hematopoietic stem cell transplantation. *J Immunol Res.*, 2018:3826989, **IF 3,404 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 69. Kasielska-Trojan A., Koziel S., Sitek A., Antoszewski J.: Do skin and hair pigmentation in prepubertal and early pubertal stage correlate with 2D:4D? *American Journal of Human Biology*, 2018, 30(6):e12631, **IF 1,438 (35 pkt MNiSW**)
- Kazek-Kęsik A., Leśniak K., Orzechowska B.U., Dec W., Drab M., Wiśniewska A., Simka W.: Alkali treatment of anodized titanium alloys affects cytocompability. *Metals*, 2018, 8:29, IF 2,259 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 71. Kędziora A., Speruda M., Krzyżewska E., Rybka J., Łukowiak A., Bugla-Płoskońska G.: Similarities and differences between silver ions and silver in nanoforms as antibacterial agents. *Int J Mol Sci.*, 2018, 19(2), **IF 4,183 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 72. Klejborowska G., Maj E., Wietrzyk J., Stefańska J., Huczyński A.: One-pot synthesis and antiproliferative activity of novel double-modified derivatives of the polyether ionophore monensin A. *Chem Biol Drug Des.*, 2018; 92: 1537–1546, **IF 2,256 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 73. Klimczak A., Kozlowska U., Kurpisz M.: Muscle stem/progenitor cells and mesenchymal stem cells of bone marrow origin for skeletal muscle regeneration in muscular dystrophies. *Arch. Immunol. Ther. Exp.*, 2018, 66(5):341-354, **IF 2,878 (25 pkt MNiSW)**

- 74. Konopka B.M., Lwow F., Owczarz M., Łaczmański Ł.: Exploratory data analysis of a clinical study group: Development of a procedure for exploring multidimensional data. *PLoS One*, 2018, 13(8):e0201950, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 75. Kopec-Pyciarz K., Zwolinska D., Makulska I., Laczmanski L., Baran W.: Skin autofluorescence, as a measure of AGEs accumulation in individuals suffering from chronic plaque psoriasis. *Mediators of Inflammation*, 2018, 2018:4016939, **IF 3,545** (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 76. Korzyńska W., Jodkowska A., Gosławska K., Bogunia-Kubik K., Mazur G.: Genetic aspects of primary hyperaldosteronism. *Adv Clin Exp Med.*, 2018, 27(8):1149-1158, Review, **IF 1,227 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 77. Koziel S., Kociuba M., Chakraborty R., Sitek A., Ignasiak Z.: Further evidence of association of low second-to-fourth digit ratio (2D:4D) with selection in uniformed services a study among police personnel from Wroclaw, Poland. *Journal of Biosocial Sciences*, 2018, 50(4):527-539, IF 1,050 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- Koziel S., Malina R.M.: Modified maturity offset prediction equations: validation in independent longitudinal samples of boys and girls. *Sports Medicine*, 2018, 48:221-236, IF 7,583 (50 pkt MNiSW)
- 79. Koziel S., Scheffler C., Tutkuviene J., Jakimaviciene E.M., Mumm R., Barbieri D., Godina E., El-Shabrawi M., Elhusseini M., Musalek M., Pruszkowska-Przybylska P., El Dash H., Safar H.H., Lehmann A., Swanson J., Bogin B., Liu Y.C., Groth D., Kirchengast S., Siniarska A., Nieczuja-Dwojacka J., Kralik M., Satake T., Hanc T., Roelants M., Hermanussen M.: Growth and Social Environment. Proceedings of the 25th Aschauer Soiree, held at Krobielowice, Poland, November 18th 2017. *Pediatric Endocrinology Reviews*, 2018, 15 (4):319-329, **IF 0,819**
- Kozieł S., Żądzińska E., Gomuła A.: Parental smoking during pregnancy and head shape and size on school children. *Annals of Human Biology*, 2018, 45(5):401-405, IF 1,438 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 81. Krotkiewski H., Górski A., Zimecki M.: Building prestige of *Archivum Immunologiae et Therapiae Experimentalis*: From a hardly known to a recognized international journal. *Arch Immunol Ther Exp.*, 2018, 66(6):407-413, **IF 2,878 (25 pkt MNiSW**)
- 82. Krzyżewska E., Rybka J.: Biosynteza lipopolisacharydów o zmiennej długości części O-swoistej jako czynnik wirulencji bakterii Gram-ujemnych. *Postepy Hig Med Dosw.*, 2018, 72:573-586, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW**)
- Krzystek-Korpacka M., Zawadzki M., Kapturkiewicz B., Lewandowska P., Bednarz-Misa I., Gorska S., Witkiewicz W., Gamian A.: Subsite heterogeneity in the profiles of circulating cytokines in colorectal cancer. *Cytokine*, 2018, 110:435-441, IF 3,078 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 84. Krzystek-Korpacka M., Zawadzki M., Szufnarowski K., Bednarz-Misa I., Gorska S., Witkiewicz W., Gamian A.: The perioperative dynamics of IL-7 following robot-assisted and open colorectal surgery. *Sci Rep.*, 2018, 8(1):9126, **IF 4,011 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 85. Kupczyk P., Reich A., Gajda M., Hołysz M., Wysokińska E., Paprocka M., Nevozhay D., Chodaczek G., Jagodziński P.P., Ziółkowski, P., Szepietowski J.C.: UCHL1/PGP 9.5 Dynamic in neuro-immune-cutaneous milieu: focusing on axonal nerve terminals and epidermal keratinocytes in psoriatic itch. *BioMed Res. Int.*, 2018, 2018:7489316, IF 2,197 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 86. Kutkowska J., Strzadala L., Rapak A.: Sorafenib in combination with betulinic acid synergistically induces cell cycle arrest and inhibits clonogenic activity in pancreatic ductal adenocarcinoma cells. *Int. J. Mol. Sci.*, 2018, 19, **IF 4,183 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 87. Kuzan A., Chwiłkowska A., Maksymowicz K., Bronowicka-Szydełko A., Stach K., Pezowicz C., Gamian A.: Advanced glycation end products as a source of artifacts in

immunoenzymatic methods. *Glycoconj J.*, 2018, 35(1):95-103, Erratum in: Glycoconj J. 2018, 35(1):105, **IF 2,926 (20 pkt MNiSW)**

- Laczmanska I., Sasiadek M., Laczmanski L.: The comparison between moleculra tumour profiling in microdissected and surgical tissue samples. *Anticancer Res.*, 2018, 38(3):1415-1418, IF 1,935 (20 pkt MNiSW)
- 89. Lange A., Jaskula E., Lange J., Dworacki G., Nowak D., Simiczyjew A., Mordak-Domagala M., Sedzimirska M.: The sorafenib anti-relapse effect after alloHSCT is associated with heightened alloreactivity and accumulation of CD8+PD-1+ (CD279+) lymphocytes in marrow. *PLoS One*, 2018, 13(1):e0190525, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 90. Lemieszewska M., Polanowski A., Wilusz T., Sokołowska A., Zambrowicz A., Mikołajewicz K., Macała J., Rymaszewska J., Zabłocka A.: Isolation and characterization of NP-POL nonapeptide for possible therapeutic use in Parkinson's disease. Oxid Med Cell Longev, 2018, 2018:3760124, IF 4,868 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- Lewandowicz-Uszyńska A., Pasternak G., Naporowski P., Witkowska D.: Identyfikacja czynników etiologicznych wybranych zakażeń bakteryjnych i wirusowych na podstawie testów serologicznych. *Post Hig Med Dośw.*, 2018, 72:1162-1172, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 92. Lica J.J., Grabe G.J., Heldt M., Misiak M., Bloch P., Serocki M., Switalska M., Wietrzyk J., Baginski M., Hellmann A., Borowski E., Skladanowski A.: Cell density-dependent cytological stage profile and its application for a screen of cytostatic agents active towards Leukemic Stem Cells. *Stem Cells and Development*, 2018, 27(7):488-513, IF 3,147 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 93. Lisowska M., Pawlak A., Kutkowska J., Hildebrand W., Ugorski M., Rapak A., Miazek A.: Development of novel monoclonal antibodies to dog leukocyte antigen DR displaying direct and immune-mediated cytotoxicity toward canine lymphoma cell lines. *Hematol. Oncol.*, 2018, IF 3,439 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 94. Lukasiewicz J., Lugowski C.: Editorial: O-specific polysaccharide confers lysozyme resistance to extraintestinal pathogenic *Escherichia coli*. *Virulence*, 2018, 9(1):919-922, IF 4,775 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 4. Lacina P., Butrym A., Mazur G., Bogunia-Kubik K.: BSG and MCT1 genetic variants influence survival in multiple myeloma patients. *Genes (Basel)*, 2018, 9(5), IF 3,331 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 96. Łączkowski K.Z., Anusiak J., Świtalska M., Dzitko K., Cytarska J., Baranowska-Łączkowska A., Plech T., Paneth A., Wietrzyk J., Białczyk J.: Synthesis, molecular docking, ctDNA interaction, DFT calculation and evaluation of antiproliferative and anti-Toxoplasma gondii activities of 2,4-diaminotriazine-thiazole derivatives. *Med. Chem Res*, 2018, 27(4):1131-1148, IF 1,720 (20 pkt MNiSW)
- 97. Łupicka-Słowik A., Psurski M., Grzywa R., Bobrek K., Smok P., Walczak M., Gaweł A., Stefaniak T., Oleksyszyn J., Sieńczyk M.: Development of adenosine deaminase-specific IgY antibodies: diagnostic and inhibitory application. *Applied Biochemistry and Biotechnology*, 2018, 184:1358-1374, IF 2,140 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 98. Maj E., Filip-Psurska B., Milczarek M., Psurski M., Kutner A., Wietrzyk J.: Vitamin D derivatives potentiate anticancer and antiangiogenic activity of tyrosine kinase inhibitors in combination with cytostatic drugs in A549 non-small cell lung cancer model. *Int J Oncology*, 2018, 52: 337-366, **IF 3,333 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 99. Majcher U., Klejborowska G., Kaik M., Maj E., Wietrzyk J., Moshari M., Preto J., Tuszynski J., Huczynski A.: Synthesis and biological evaluation of novel triple-modified Colchicine derivatives as potent tubulin-targeting anticancer agents. *Cells*, 2018, 7(11):216, **IF 5,656**

- 100.Majcher U., Klejborowska G., Moshari M., Maj E., Wietrzyk J., Bartl F., Tuszynski J.A., Huczyński A.: Antiproliferative activity and molecular docking of novel double-modified colchicine derivatives. *Cells*, 2018, 7(11), 192, **IF 5,656**
- 101.Majcher U., Urbaniak A., Maj E., Moshari M., Delgado M., Wietrzyk J., Bartl F., Chambers T.C., Tuszynski J.A., Huczyński A.: Synthesis, antiproliferative activity and molecular docking of thiocolchicine urethanes. *Bioorganic Chemistry*, 2018, 81: 553-566, IF 3,926 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 102.Majkowski M., Laszkiewicz A., Sniezewski L., Grzmil P., Pawlicka B., Tomczyk I., Michniewicz M., Kapusniak V., Janik S., Chodaczek G., Cebrat M.: Lack of NWC protein (c11orf74 homolog) in murine spermatogenesis results in reduced sperm competitiveness and impaired ability to fertilize egg cells *in vitro*. *PLoS One*, 2018, 13(12): e0208649, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 103.Mak M., Misiak B., Frydecka D., Pełka-Wysiecka J., Kucharska-Mazur J., Samochowiec A., Bieńkowski P., Pawlak-Adamska E., Karabon L., Szmida E., Skiba P., Kotowicz K., Piotrowski .P, Beszłej J.A., Samochowiec J. Polymorphisms in immune-inflammatory response genes and the risk of deficit schizophrenia. *Schizophrenia Res.*, 2018, 193:359-363, **IF 4,569 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 104. Makowski Ł., Zakrzewska-Czerwińska J.: Cykl życiowy drapieżnej bakterii *Bdellovibrio* bacteriovorus. Post Hig Med Dośw., 2018, 72:381-391, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 105.Malik-Gajewska M., Trynda J., ZierkiewiczW., Helios K., Latajka R., Wietrzyk J., Michalska D.: Picoplatin-based complexes with the bioactive orotate and 5-fluoroorotate ligands: synthesis, DFT calculations, structure, spectroscopic characterization and *in vitro* cytotoxicity. *J. Mol. Str.*, 2018, 1171: 155-167, **IF 2,120 (20 pkt MNSiW)**
- 106.Maliszewska I., Kałas W., Wysokińska E., Tylus W., Pietrzyk N., Popko K., Palewska K.: Enhancement of photo-bactericidal effect of tetrasulfonated hydroxyaluminum phthalocyanine on *Pseudomonas aeruginosa*. *Lasers Med. Sci.*, 2018, 33:79–88, **IF 2,076 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 107.Man-Kupisinska A., Swierzko A.S., Maciejewska A., Hoc M., Rozalski A., Siwinska M., Lugowski C., Cedzynski M., Lukasiewicz J.: Interaction of mannose-binding lectin with lipopolysaccharide outer core region and its biological consequences. *Front Immunol.*, 2018, 9:1498, **IF 4,716 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 108.Margaryan S., Witkowicz A., Arakelyan A., Partyka A., Karabon L., Manukyan G.: sFasL-mediated induction of neutrophil activation in patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. *PLoS One*, 2018, 13(7):e0201087, **IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW**)
- 109.Masternak J., Gilewska A., Kazimierczuk K., Khavryuchenko O.V., Wietrzyk J., Trynda J., Barszcz B.: Synthesis, physicochemical and theoretical studies on new rhodium and ruthenium dimers. Relationship between structure and cytotoxic activity. *Polyhedron*, 2018, 154: 263-274, **IF 2,284 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 110.Mączyński M., Borska S., Mieszała K., Kocięba M., Zaczyńska E., Kochanowska I., Zimecki M.: Immunosuppressive properties and mechanism of action of a new isoxazole derivative. *Molecules*, 2018, 23: 1545, **IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 111.Michel O., Kulbacka J., Saczko J., Mączyńska J., Błasiak P., Rossowska J., Rzechonek A.: Electroporation with cisplatin against metastatic pancreatic cancer: *in vitro* study on human primary cell culture. *Biomed Res Int*, 2018, 2018:7364539, IF 2,197 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 112.Michel O., Przystupski D., Saczko J., Szewczyk A., Niedzielska N., Rossowska J., Kulbacka J.: The favourable effect of catechin in electrochemotherapy in human pancreatic cancer cells. *Acta Biochim Pol*, 2018, 65(2):173-184, **IF 1,626 (15 pkt MNiSW**)

- 113.Mieczkowski A., Psurski M., Bagiński M., Bieszczad B., Mroczkowska M., Wilczek M., Czajkowska J., Trzybiński D., Woźniak K., Wietrzyk J.: Novel (S)-1,3,4,12atetrahydropyrazino[2,1-c][1,4]benzodiazepine-6,12(2H,11H)-dione derivatives: Selective inhibition of MV-4-11 biphenotypic B myelomonocytic leukemia cells' growth is accompanied by reactive oxygen species overproduction and apoptosis. *Bioorg Med Chem Letter*, 2018, 28 (4): 618-625, **IF 2,448 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 114.Miłkowska K., Ziomkiewicz A., Galbarczyk A.: Tattooed man: Could menstrual cycle phase and contraceptive use change female preferences towards bad boys? *Personality and Individual Differences*, 2018, 121:41-47, **IF 1,997 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 115.Mitkiewicz M., Bac B., Kuropatwa M., Kurowska E., Matuszyk J., Siednienko J.: Sp1 mediates phorbol ester (PMA)-induced expression of membrane-bound guanylyl cyclase GC-A in human monocytic THP-1 cells. *Acta Biochim Pol.*, 2018, 65:409-414, IF 1,626 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 116.Mnich B., Spinek A.E., Chyleński M., Sommerfeld A., Dabert M., Juras A., Szostek K.: Analysis of LCT-13910 genotypes and bone mineral density in ancient skeletal materials. PLoS One, 2018, 13(4): 1-8, IF 2,776 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 117.Morka K., Bystroń J., Bania J., Korzeniowska-Kowal A., Korzekwa K., Guz-Regner K., Bugla-Płoskońska G.: Identification of *Yersinia enterocolitica* isolates from humans, pigs and wild boars by MALDI TOF MS. *BMC Microbiol.*, 2018, 18(1):86, **IF 3,287 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 118.Morzyk-Ociepa B., Szmigiel K., Turowska-Tyrk I., Malik-Gajewska M., Banach J., Wietrzyk J.: New mono- and dinuclear complexes of 7-azaindole-3-carboxaldehyde with palladium(II): crystal structure, IR and Raman spectra, DFT calculations and *in vitro* antiproliferative activity. *Polyhedron*, 2018, 153: 88-98, **IF 2,284 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 119.Mumm R., Godina E., Koziel S., Musalek M., Sedlak P., Wittwer-Backofen U., Hesse V., Dasgupta P., Henneberg M., Cheffler C.: External skeletal robusticity of children and adolescents – European references from birth to adulthood and international comparison. *Anthropologischer Anzeiger*, 74(5 Suppl):383-391, **IF 0,577 (20 pkt MNiSW**)
- 120.Musialik W., Nabiałek M., Letkiewicz S., Sandu A.V., Bloch K.: Application of innovative hydroxyapatite materials in 3D printing for biocompatible voice implants. *Revista de Chimie*, 2018, 69(4):840-842, **IF 1,605 (20 pkt MNiSW)**
- 121.Naporowski P., Witkowska D., Lewandowicz-Uszyńska A., Gamian A.: Zakażenia bakteryjne, wirusowe i grzybicze towarzyszące pierwotnym niedoborom odporności manifestacją zaburzeń procesów immunologicznych. *Post Hig Med Dośw.*, 2018, 72:557-572, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 122.Neubauer K., Matusiewicz M., Bednarz-Misa I., Gorska S., Gamian A., Krzystek-Korpacka M.: Diagnostic potential of systemic eosinophil-associated cytokines and growth factors in IBD. *Gastroenterol Res Pract.*, 2018, 2018:7265812, IF 1,825 (20 pkt MNiSW)
- 123.Nieczuja-Dwojacka J., Siniarska A., Koziel S., Marchewka J., Zabłocka R.: Age at maturation, body structure and their relationship with socioeconomic factors. *Anthropologischer Anzeiger*, 2018, 75(4):263-270, **IF 0,577 (20 pkt MNiSW**)
- 124.Nowak J., Nestorowicz K., Graczyk-Pol E., Mika-Witkowska R., Rogatko-Koros M., Jaskuła E., Kościńska K., Madej S., Tomaszewska A., Nasilowska-Adamska B., Szczepiński A., Halaburda K., Dybko J., Kuliczkowski K., Czerw T., Giebel S., Holowiecki J., Baranska M., Pieczonka A., Wachowiak J., Czyż A., Gil L., Lojko-Dankowska A., Komarnicki M., Bieniaszewska M., Kucharska A., Hellmann A., Gronkowska A., Jedrzejczak W.W., Markiewicz M., Koclega A., Kyrcz-Krzemień S., Mielcarek M., Kalwak K., Styczyński J., Wysocki M., Drabko K., Wójcik B., Kowalczyk J., Goździk J., Pawliczak D., Gwozdowicz S., Dziopa J., Szlendak U.,

Witkowska A., Zubala M., Gawron A., Warzocha K., Lange A.: HLA-inferred extended haplotype disparity level is more relevant than the level of HLA mismatch alone for the patients survival and GvHD in T cell-replate hematopoietic stem cell transplantation from unrelated donor. *Hum Immunol.*, 2018, 79(6):403-412, **IF 2,202 (20 pkt MNiSW)**

- 125.Nowicka A., Nawrocka W.P., Liszkiewicz H., Wietrzyk J., Anisiewicz A., Kołodziejczyk W.: Synthesis and *in vitro* antiproliferative activity of novel mannich bases - 2-arylideneaminobenzimidazoles derivatives. Acta Poloniae Pharmaceutica -Drug Research, 2018, 75(2):397-405, IF 0,447 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 126.Ochnik M., Sochocka M.: Rola infekcji wirusowych w patogenezie choroby Alzheimera. *Post Hig Med Dośw*, 2018, 72:861-874, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 127.Orzechowska B., Bezpalko L., Lis M., Boratyński J.: Powstrzymanie epidemii księgosuszu w Polsce w latach 1921-1922, *Postepy Hig Med Dosw*, 2018, 72:966-974, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 128.Paczuska J., Świtalska M., Nowak M., Kiełbowicz Z.: Effectiveness of CO2 laser in an experimental mammary gland adenocancinoma model. *Vet Comp Oncol.*, 2018, 16(1):47-54, IF 2,379 (45 pkt MNiSW)
- 129.Palusiak A., Maciejewska A., Lugowski C., Rozalski A., Kaszowska M.: The new structure of core oligosaccharide presented by *Proteus penneri* 40A and 41 lipopolysaccharides. *Int J Mol Sci.*, 2018, 19(3), **IF 4,183 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 130.Panek-Leszczyńska K., Konieczny A., Milewska E., Dąbrowska K., Bąchor R., Witkiewicz W., Szewczuk Z.: Podocyturia as an early diagnostic marker of preeclampsia: a literature review. *Biomarkers*, 2018, 23(3):207-212, **IF 1,730 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 131.Pawlak A., Gładkowski W., Kutkowska J., Mazur M., Obmińska-Mrukowicz B., Rapak A.: Enantiomeric trans β-aryl-δ-iodo-γ-lactones derived from 2,5dimethylbenzaldehyde induce apoptosis in canine lymphoma cell lines by downregulation of anti-apoptotic Bcl-2 family members Bcl-xL and Bcl-2. *Bioorg. Med. Chem. Lett.*, 2018, 28: 1171–1177, **IF 2,448 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 132.Pawlik A., Anisiewicz A., Filip-Psurska B., Nowak M., Turlej E., Trynda J., Banach J., Gretkierewicz P., Wietrzyk J.: Calcitriol and its analogs establish the immunosuppressive microenvironment that drives metastasis in 4T1 mouse mammary gland cancer. *Int. J. Mol. Sci.* 2018, 19(7), 2116, **IF 4,183 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 133.Płoszaj P., Junka A., Szponar B.; Mączyński M., Ryng S., Bartoszewicz M., Piwowar A.: Insights into mycobacterial activity and cytotoxicity of substitued isoxazole-4carbohydrazide derivatives. *Acta Poloniae Pharmaceutica*, 2018, 75:637-647, IF 0,447 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 134.Pniewski T., Milczarek M., Wojas-Turek J., Pajtasz-Piasecka E., Wietrzyk J., Czyż M.: Plant lyophilisate carrying S-HBsAg as an oral booster vaccine against HBV. *Vaccine*, 2018, 36(41): 6070-6076, **IF 3,269 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 135.Podbielska M., O'Keeffe J., Hogan E.L.: Autoimmunity in multiple sclerosis: role of glycolipids, invariant NKT cells and other immune elements in control of inflammation and neurodegeneration. *J Neurol Sci.*, 2018, 385:198-214, **IF 2,651 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 136.Pohl P., Bielawska-Pohl A., Dzimitrowicz A., Greda K., Jamroz P., Lesniewicz A., Szymczycha-Madeja A., Welna M.: Understanding element composition of medicinal plants used in herbalism-A case study by analytical atomic spectrometr. *Journal of Pharmaceutical and Biomedical Analysis*, 2018, 159:262-271, IF 2,983 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 137.Pohl P., Bielawska-Pohl A., Dzimitrowicz A., Jamroz P., Welna M.: Impact and practicability of recently introduced requirements on elemental impurities. *Trac-Trends in Analytical Chemistry*, 2018, 101:43-55, **IF 8,428 (50 pkt MNiSW)**

- 138.Popłoński J., Turlej E., Sordon S., Tronina T., Bartmańska A., Wietrzyk J., Huszcza E.: Synthesis and antiproliferative activity of minor hops prenylflavonoids and new insights on prenyl group cyclization. *Molecules*, 2018 28;23(4), IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 139.Porshneva K., Papiernik D., Psurski M., Nowak M., Matkowski R., Ekiert M., Milczarek M., Banach J., Jarosz J., Wietrzyk J.: Combination therapy with DETA/NO and clopidogrel inhibits metastasis in murine mammary gland cancer models via improved vasoprotection. *Mol. Pharmaceutics*, 2018, 15(11):5277-5290, IF 4,396 (40 pkt MNiSW)
- 140.Przybyl S., Jachymek W.: Antygeny Actinobacillus pleuropneumoniae i ich wykorzystanie w projektowaniu szczepionek, ze szczególnym uwzględnieniem preparatów glikokoniugatowych. Postepy Hig Med Dosw., 2018, 72:471-480, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 141.Psurski M., Janczewski Ł., Świtalska M., Gajda A., Goszczyński T.M., Ciekot J., Winiarski Ł., Oleksyszyn J., Wietrzyk J., Gajda T.: Phosphorus-containing isothiocyanate-derived mercapturic acids as a useful alternative for parental isothiocyanates in experimental oncology. *Bioorg Med Chem Lett.*, 2018, 28(15):2611-2615, IF 2,448 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 142.Pyclik M., Gorska S., Brzozowska E., Dobrut A., Ciekot J., Gamian A., Brzychczy-Wloch M.: Epitope mapping of *Streptococcus agalactiae* elongation factor tu protein recognized by human sera. *Front Microbiol*, 2018, 9:125, **IF 4,259 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 143.Rashdan H.R.M., Roaiah H.M.F., Muhammad Z.A., Wietrzyk J., Milczarek M., Soliman A.M.: Design, efficient synthesis, mechanism of reaction and antiproliferative activity against cancer and normal cell lines of a novel class of fused pyrimidine derivatives. *Acta Pol Pharm*, 2018; 75(3):679-688, **IF 0,447** (**15 pkt MNiSW**)
- 144.Razim A., Pacyga K., Aptekorz M., Martirosian G., Szuba A., Pawlak-Adamska E., Brzychczy-Włoch M., Myc A., Gamian A., Górska S.: Epitopes identified in GAPDH from *Clostridium difficile* recognized as common antigens with potential autoimmunizing properties. *Scientific Rep.* 2018, 8:13946, **IF 4,011 (40 pkt MNiSW**)
- 145.Rohde C., Resch G., Pirnay J.P., Blasdel B.G., Debarbieux L., Gelman D., Górski A., Hazan R., Huys I., Kakabadze E., Łobocka M., Maestri A., Almeida G.M.F., Makalatia K., Malik D.J., Mašlaňová I., Merabishvili M., Pantucek R., Rose T., Štveráková D., Van Raemdonck H., Verbeken G., Chanishvili N.: Expert opinion on three phage therapy related topics: bacterial phage resistance, phage training and prophages in bacterial production strains. *Viruses*, 2018, 10(4), **IF 3,811 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 146.Rollenske T., Szijarto V., Lukasiewicz J., Guachalla L.M., Stojkovic K., Hartl K., Stulik L., Kocher S., Lasitschka F., Al-Saeedi M., Schröder-Braunstein J., von Frankenberg M., Gaebelein G., Hoffmann P., Klein S., Heeg K., Nagy E., Nagy G., Wardemann H.: Cross-specificity of protective human antibodies against *Klebsiella pneumoniae* LPS O-antigen. *Nat Immunol.*, 2018, 19(6):617-624, **IF 23,530 (50 pkt MNiSW)**
- 147.Rossowska J., Anger N., Szczygieł A., Mierzejewska J., Pajtasz-Piasecka E.: Reprogramming the murine colon cancer microenvironment using lentivectors encoding shRNA against IL-10 as a component of a potent DC-based chemoimmunotherapy. *J Exp Clin Cancer Res.*, 2018 t. 37:126, **IF 5,646 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 148.Rymaszewska J., Urbańska K.M., Szcześniak D., Stanczykiewicz B., Trypka E., Zabłocka A.: The improvement of memory deficits after whole-body cryotherapy the first report. *CryoLetters*, 2018, 39:190-195, **IF 0,694 (20 pkt MNiSW**)

- 149.Sadok I., Szmagara A., Staniszewska M.: The validated and sensitive HPLC-DAD method for determination of patulin in strawberries. *Food Chem.*, 2018, 245:364-370, **IF 5,399 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 150.Saeed A., Paściak M., Górska S., Ceremuga I., Gamian E., Ziółkowski P., Drab M., Gamian A.: Structural elucidation of *Tsukamurella pulmonis* neutral polysaccharide and its visualization in infected mouse tissues by specific monoclonal antibodies. *Sci Rep.*, 2018, 8(1):11564, **IF 4,011 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 151.Sidoryk K., Cmoch P., Świtalska M., Trzaskowski B., Wietrzyk J., Cybulski M.: Efficient glycosylation of natural danshensu and its enantiomer by sugar and 2-deoxy sugar donors. *Carbohydr Res.*, 2018, 460:19-28, **IF 1,873 (25 pkt MNiSW**)
- 152.Sitek A., Kozieł S., Kasielska-Trojan A., Antoszewski B.: Do skin and hair pigmentation in prepubertal and early pubertal stages correlate with 2D:4D? *Am J Hum Biol.*, 2018, 30(6):e12631, **IF 1,438 (30 pkt MNiSW**)
- 153.Skaradzińska A., Skaradziński G., Choińska-Pulit A., Śliwka P., Łaba W., Mituła P., Żaczek M., Weber-Dąbrowska B.: Potential application of lyophilization in commercial use of bacteriophage preparations in veterinary mecicine. *Slov Vet Res*, 2018, 55 (2):73-80, **IF 0,170 (20 pkt MNiSW)**
- 154.Slack J., Albert M.H., Balashov D., Belohradsky B.H., Bertaina A., Bleesing J., Booth C., Buechner J., Buckley R.H., Ouachée-Chardin M., Deripapa E., Drabko K., Eapen M., Feuchtinger T., Finocchi A., Gaspar H.B., Ghosh S., Gillio A., Gonzalez-Granado L.I., Grunebaum E., Güngör T., Heilmann C., Helminen M., Higuchi K., Imai K., Kalwak K., Kanazawa N., Karasu G., Kucuk Z.Y., Laberko A., Lange A., Mahlaoui N., Meisel R., Moshous D., Muramatsu H., Parikh S., Pasic S., Schmid I., Schuetz C., Schulz A., Schultz K.R., Shaw P.J., Slatter M.A., Sykora K.W., Tamura S., Taskinen M., Wawer A., Wolska-Kuśnierz B., Cowan M.J., Fischer A., Gennery A.R., Inborn Errors Working Party of the European Society for Blood and Marrow Transplantation and the European Society for Immunodeficiencies; Stem Cell Transplant for Immunodeficiencies in Europe (SCETIDE); Center for International Blood and Marrow Transplant Research; Primary Immunodeficiency Treatment Consortium: Outcome of hematopoietic cell transplantation for DNA double-strand break repair disorders. *J Allergy Clin Immunol.*, 2018:141(1):322-328, **IF 14,110 (50 pkt MNiSW)**
- 155.Smeda M., Kieronska A., Adamski M.G., Proniewski B., Sternak M., Mohaissen T., Przyborowski K., Derszniak K., Kaczor D., Stojak M., Buczek E., Jasztal A., Wietrzyk J., Chlopicki S.: Nitric oxide deficiency and endothelial-mesenchymal transition of pulmonary endothelium in the progression of 4T1 metastatic breast cancer in mice. *Breast Cancer Research*, 2018, 20:86, **IF 5,676 (40 pkt MNiSW**)
- 156.Smeda M., Kieronska A., Proniewski B., Jasztal A., Selmi A., Wandzel K., Zakrzewska A., Wojcik T., Przyborowski K., Derszniak K., Stojak M., Kaczor D., Buczek E., Watala C., Wietrzyk J., Chlopicki S.: Dual antiplatelet therapy with clopidogrel and aspirin increases mortality in 4T1 metastatic breast cancer-bearing mice by inducing vascular mimicry in primary tumour. *Oncotarget*, 2018, 9:17810-17824, **IF 5,168 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 157.Sniezewski L., Janik S., Laszkiewicz A., Majkowski M., Kisielow P., Cebrat M.: The evolutionary conservation of the bidirectional activity of the NWC gene promoter in jawed vertebrates and the domestication of the RAG transposon. *Developmental and Comparative Immunology*, 2018, 81: 105-115, **IF 3,119 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 158.Solecka J., Rajnisz-Mateusiak A., Guspiel A., Jakubiec-Krzesniak K., Ziemska J., Kawecki R., Kaczorek D., Gudanis D., Jarosz J., Wietrzyk J.: Cyclo(Pro-DOPA), a third identified bioactive metabolite produced by *Streptomyces* sp. 8812. *J. Antibiotics* (*Tokyo*), 2018, 71: 757–761, **IF 2,446 (20 pkt MNiSW**)

- 159.Stompor M., Świtalska M., Wietrzyk J.: Synthesis and biological evaluation of acyl derivatives of hydroxyflavones as potent antiproliferative agents against drug resistance cell lines. *Zeitschrift für Naturforschung C.*, 2018, 73(1-2):87-93, **IF 1,000 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 160.Strzadala L., Fiedorowicz A., Wysokinska E., Ziolo E., Grudzień M., Jelen M., Pluta K., Morak-Mlodawska B., Zimecki M., Kalas W.: An anti-inflammatory azaphenothiazine inhibits interferon β expression and CXCL10 production in KERTr cells. *Molecules*, 2018, 23, **IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 161.Swietnicki W.: Recent advances in antibacterial drug development. Int J Rec Sci Res., 2018, 5A:26501-26505, IF 6,860
- 162.Swietnicki W., Czarny A., Urbanska N., Drab M.: Identification of small molecule compounds active against *Staphylococcus aureus* and *Proteus mirabilis*. *Biochem Biophys Res Commun.*, 2018, 506:1047-1051, **IF 2,705 (25 pkt MNiSW)**
- 163.Szmyrka M., Ciszak L., Weglarz M., Andrzejewska K., Wiland P., Kosmaczewska A.: Dysregulated interferon- γ and interleukin-2 synthesis in peripheral blond T cells in quiescent systemie lapus erythematosus is dependent on the affected T-cell receptor ζ chain expression. *Pol Arch Int Med.*, 2018; 128(10):626-630, **IF 2,882 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 164.Szulc-Dąbrowska L., Wojtyniak P., Papiernik D., Struzik J.: Modulacja funkcji plazmacytoidalnych komórek dendrytycznych podczas zakażeń wirusowych. *Postepy Hig Med Dosw*, 2018; 72 : 264-277, **IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW**)
- 165.Ślęzak R., Leszczyński P., Warzecha M., Łaczmański Ł., Misiak B.: Assessment of the FTO gene polymorphisms in male patients with metabolic syndrome. *Adv Clin Exp Med.*, 2018, 27(11):1581-1585, **IF 1,227 (15 pkt MNiSW**)
- 166.Tomczyk T., Wróbel G., Chaber R., Siemieniec I., Piasecki E., Krzystek-Korpacka M., Orzechowska B.U.: Immune consequences of *in vitro* infection of human peripheral blood leukocytes with vesicular stomatitis virus (VSV). *Journal of Innate Immunity*, 2018, 10:131-144, **IF 4,085 (35 pkt MNiSW)**
- 167.Urbaniak A., Jablonska K., Podhorska-Okolow M., Ugorski M., Dziegiel P.: Prolactininduced protein (PIP) – characterization and role in breats cancer progression. *American Journal of Cancer Research*, 2018, 11(8):2150-2164, **IF 4,737 (35 pkt MNiSW**)
- 168.Wanecka A., Król J., Twardoń J., Mrowiec J., Bania J., Korzeniowska-Kowal A., Tobiasz A.: Characterization of a genetically distinct subpopulation of *Staphylococcus haemolyticus* isolated from milk of cows with intramammary infections. *Vet Microbiol.*, 2018, 214:28-35, **IF 2,791 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 169. Wawrzyńska M., Bil-Lula I., Krzywonos-Zawadzka A., Arkowski J., Łukaszewicz M., Hreniak D, Stręk W., Sawicki G, Woźniak M., Drab M., Frączkowska M., Duda M., Kopaczyńska M., Podbielska H., Biały D.: Biocompatible carbon-based coating as potential endovascular material for stent Surface. *Biomed Res Int.*, 2018:2758347, IF 2,197 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 170.Weżgowiec J., Kulbacka J., Saczko J., Rossowska J., Chodaczek G., Kotulska M.: Biological effects in photodynamic treatment combined with electropermeabilization in wild and drug resistant breast cancer cells. *Bioelectrochemistry*, 2018, 123:9-18, IF 4,474 (35 pkt MNiSW)
- 171.Wielińska J., Dratwa M., Świerkot J., Korman L., Iwaszko M., Wysoczańska B., Bogunia-Kubik K.: IL-6 gene polymorphism is associated with protein serum level and disease activity in Polish patients with rheumatoid arthritis. *HLA*, 2018, 92 Suppl 2:38-41, IF 2,785
- 172. Wiśniewski A., Matusiak Ł., Szczerkowska-Dobosz A., Nowak I., Łuszczek W., Kuśnierczyk P.: Association of ERAP1 and ERAP2 single nucleotide polymorphisms and their haplotypes with psoriasis vulgaris is dependent on the presence or absence of HLA-

C*06:02 allele and age at disease onset. *Human Immunology*, 2018, 79:109-116, **IF 2,202** (20 pkt MNiSW)

- 173. Wiśniewski A., Matusiak Ł., Szczerkowska-Dobosz A., Nowak I., Kuśnierczyk P.: HLA-C*06:02-independent, gender-related association of PSORS1C3 and PSORS1C1/CDSN single nucleotide polymorphisms with risk and severity of psoriasis. *Mol Genet Genomics*, 2018, 293(4):957-966, IF 2,879 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 174. Woźniak-Biel A., Bugla-Płoskońska G., Kielsznia A., Korzekwa K., Tobiasz A., Korzeniowska-Kowal A., Wieliczko A.: High prevalence of resistance to fluoroquinolones and tetracycline *Campylobacter* Spp. isolated from poultry in Poland. *Microb Drug Resist.*, 2018, 24(3):314-322, IF 2,397 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 175.Zabłocka A., Zambrowicz A., Macała J., Kazana W., Polanowski A.: Yolkin a polypeptide complex isolated from chicken egg yolk with potential neuroprotective and antioxidative activity. *Neuropsychiatry (London)*, 2018, 8:833-842, **IF 4,778 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 176.Zabłotni A., Matusiak D., Arbatsky N.P., Moryl M., Maciejewska A., Kondakova A.N., Shashkov A.S., Ługowski C., Knirel Y.A., Różalski A.: Changes in the lipopolysaccharide of *Proteus mirabilis* 9B-m (O11a) clinical strain in response to planktonic or biofilm type of growth. *Med Microbiol Immunol.*, 2018, 207(2):129-139, IF 2,960 (30 pkt MNiSW)
- 177.Zaczynska E., Kochanowska I., Kruzel M., Zimecki M.: Lactoferrin prevents apoptosis in WEHI 231 cells by promoting cell differentiation. *Folia Biologica (Praha)*, 2018, 64: 16-22, IF 1,073 (20 pkt MNiSW)
- 178.Zambrowicz A., Zabłocka A., Sudoł M., Bobak Ł., Sosicka P., Trziszka T.: The effect of carbohydrate moieties on immunoregulatory activity of yolkin polypeptide naturally occuring in egg yolk. *LWT-Food Sci &Technol.*, 2018, 88:165-173, **IF 3,714 (40 pkt MNiSW)**
- 179.Zawadzki M., Krzystek-Korpacka M., Gamian A., Witkiewicz W.: Serum cytokines in early prediction of anastomotic leakage following low anterior resection. *Wideochir Inne Tech Maloinwazyjne*, 2018, 13(1):33-43, **IF 1,147 (15 pkt MNiSW)**
- 180.Zhou B., Bentham J., Di Cesare M., Bixby H., Kozieł S. et al. (860 Collaborators) (NCD Risk Risk Factor Collaboration): Contribution of mean and shape of blood pressure distribution to worldwide trends and variations in raised blood pressure: a pooled analysis of 1018 population-based measurement studies with 88.6 million participants. *International Journal of Epidemiology*, 2018, 47(3):872-883, **IF 7,339 (50 pkt MNiSW)**
- 181.Zimecki M.: Potential impact of obligatory use of opioids in invasive procedures on interpretation of experimental data. *Postępy Hig Med Dośw*, 2018; 72:52-57, IF 1,106 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 182.Zimecki M., Bąchor A., Maczyński M.: Izoxazole derivatives as regulators of the immune functions. *Molecules*, 2018, 23(10), **IF 3,060 (30 pkt MNiSW)**
- 183.Ziomkiewicz A., Frumkin A., Zhang Y., Sancilio A., Bribiescas R.G.: The cost of reproduction in women: Reproductive effort and oxidative stress in premenopausal and postmenopausal American women. *American Journal of Human Biology*, 2018, 30(1):e23069 IF 1,438 (35 pkt MNiSW)

Publiccations from the journals not included in JCR database:

- 1. Artym J.: Dobroczynny wpływ probiotyków u dzieci urodzonych przez cesarskie cięcie. *Forum Pediatrii Praktycznej*, 2018, 24
- 2. Artym J., Zimecki M.: Laktoferyna w profilaktyce i leczeniu zakażeń. Zakażenia XXI wieku, 2018, 1(1): 27-34

- 3. Atrooz Omar M., Wietrzyk J., Filip-Psurska B., Al-Rawashdeh I., Soub M., Abukhalil M.H.: Antiproliferative, antioxidant and antibacterial activities of crude plant extracts of *Asphodeline Lutea L.* and *Peganum Harmala L.*, *World Journal of Pharmaceutical Research*, 2018, 7 (11): 148-167 (**4 pkt MNiSW**)
- 4. Fawzy N.M., Roaiah H.M., Award E.M., Wietrzyk J., Milczarek M., Soliman A.M.: Synthesis of new indole derivatives using one-pot multicomponent reaction with antiproliferative activity towards normal and cancer cell lines. *Egyptian Pharmaceutical Journal*, 2018, 17:86-93
- 5. Górski A., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Międzybrodzki R., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Bagińska N., Borysowski J., Łobocka M.B., Węgrzyn A., Węgrzyn G.: Phage therapy: Beyond antibacterial action. *Front Med (Lausanne)*, 2018, 5:146
- 6. Kaczmarek R.: Terapia genowa hemofilii: czy wkrótce będzie możliwe wyleczenie? *Postępy Biochemii*, 2018, 64(4):318-322 (8 pkt MNiSW)
- Kociuba M., Ignasiak Z., Sebastjan A., Kochan K., Cichy I., Dudkowski A., Ściślak M., Kozieł S.: Sex differences in relationship between body composition and digit lenhgt ratio (2D:4D) in students of military courses. *Anthropological Review*, 2018, 81(4):393-403 (15 pkt MNiSW)
- 8. Lewandowski Z., Danel D.P.: Facial attractiveness and lip morphology of Caucasian women. *Anthropological Review*, 2018, 81(4):401-413 (**15 pkt MNiSW**)
- Oleszczak Ł., Borodovskiy A.P., Lisowska-Gaczorek A., Pawlyta J., Kozieł S., Tur S.S., Cienkosz-Stepańczak B., Szostek K.: The origin of culturally diversified individuals buried in the Early Iron Age barrow cemetery at Chultukov Log 1 (Upper Altai) in light of the analysis of stable oxygen isotopes. *Collegium Antropologicum*, 2018, 42(1):27-37 (25 pkt MNiSW)
- 10. Przesmycka A., Tomczyk T., Zarzecka J., Kozieł S., Zalewska M.: Standard intraoral radiography vs. cone beam computed tomography for root canal systems detection in historical dental material. *Collegium Antropologicum*, 2018, 42(1):39-44 (**25 pkt MNiSW**)
- 11. Savini L., Kaczmarek R., Noone D., Giangrande P., Dusheiko G., O'Mahony B.: Hepatitis C and bleeding disorders in Europe. *J Haem Pract.*, 2018, 5(1):50-65
- 12. Soliman A., Kamel M., Eweas A., Wietrzyk J., Milczarek M.: The antiproliferative activity and molecular docking studies of some sulfonamides against cancer cell lines compared to normal cells. *Egyptian Journal of Chemistry*, 2018, 61(3): 423-429
- 13. Zschach H., Larsen M.V., Hasman H., Westh H., Nielsen M., Międzybrodzki R., Jończyk-Matysiak E., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Górski A.: Use of a regression model to study host-genomic determinants of phage susceptibility in MRSA. *Antibiotics (Basel)*, 2018, 7(1)

Chapters of books:

- Dąbrowska K.: Interaction of bacteriophages with the immune system: induction of bacteriophage-specific antibodies. [w:]: Azeredo J., Sillankorva S. (eds): *Bacteriophage Therapy. Methods in Molecular Biology*, vol 1693. Humana Press, New York, NY, USA 2018;1693:139-150. doi: 10.1007/978-1-4939-7395-8_12
- Dąbrowska K., Górski A., Abedon S.T.: Bacteriophage pharmacology and Immunology. [w:] Harper D.R., Abedon S.T., Burrowes B.H., McConville M.L. (eds.): *Bacteriophages biology, technology, therapy*. Springer Nature Switzerland AG 2018, doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-40598-8
- 3. Frydecka I.: Czerwienica Prawdziwa. [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika 2018. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; VIF3:1776-1779
- 4. Frydecka I.: Czerwienica Prawdziwa (PV). [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika mały podręcznik 2018/2019. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; 15/6:981-984

- 5. Frydecka I.: Nadpłytkowość samoistna. [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika 2018. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; VIF4:1779-1782
- 6. Frydecka I.: Nadpłytkowość samoistna (ET). [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika mały podręcznik 2018/2019. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; 15/7:984-986
- Frydecka I.: Pierwotne włóknienie szpiku. [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika 2018. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; VIF5:1782-1786
- Frydecka I.: Pierwotne włóknienie szpiku. [w:] Gajewski P. (red.): Interna Szczeklika mały podręcznik 2018/2019. Wyd. Medycyna Praktyczna, Kraków 2018; 15/8:986-989
- Kaźmierczak Z., Dąbrowska K.: Interaction of bacteriophages with mammalian cells. Methods. [w:]: Azeredo J., Sillankorva S. (eds): *Bacteriophage Therapy. Methods in Molecular Biology*, vol 1693. Humana Press, New York, NY, USA, 2018;1693:113-122. doi: 10.1007/978-1-4939-7395-8_10
- Międzybrodzki R., Hoyle N., Zhvaniya F., Łusiak-Szelachowska M., Weber-Dąbrowska B., Łobocka M., Borysowski J., Alavidze Z., Kutter E., Górski A., Gogokhia L.: Current updates from the long-standing phage research centers in georgia, Poland, and Russia. [w:]: Harper D. et al. (eds), *Bacteriophages*. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-40598-8_31-1. Springer International Publishing AG 2018 ISBN 978-3-319-40598-8
- Nowak-Szczepańska N., Gomula A., Koziel S.: Socio-economic determinants of underweight in polish school children between 1966-2012. [w:]: Mondal N., Bose K., Sen J. (eds.), 2018: *Malnutrition*. A Double Burden. B. R. Publishing Corporation, Delhi-110 052, pp.: 129-144